
  CITY COUNCIL AGENDA         
 865 SE Barrington Drive, Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

March 3, 2015    6:00 p.m. 

1. CALL TO ORDER
Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance
Excuse Absent Councilmembers

2. HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS
a. Proclamation of St. Patrick’s Day
b. Fire Department Employee Recognition for Years of Service:

- Steve McCalmont – 25 years
- Angela Braunstein – 10 years
- Shannon Holcomb – 10 years

3. PRESENTATIONS
a. Marine Corps League - Dutch Strehle (Commandant)
b. Update on the 2015 Whidbey Island Marathon

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

5. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD

6. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Minutes of the Special City Council meeting held on February 20, 2015 and Workshop held

February 25, 2015
b. Approval of Accounts Payable and Check Numbers
c. Update to the Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan - Consultant Request for

Proposal
d. Wastewater Treatment Plant – Request for Proposals for Construction Management
e. Authorization to Bid - One (1) Front Load Refuse Truck
f. Application for For Hire (Taxi) License - All Island Express Taxi, LLC
g. Whidbey Pedestrian Crossing – Consultant Request for Proposal
h. Waterfront Trail Repair - Consultant Request for Proposal
i. Authorize the Mayor to sign CWSRF Funding Agreements with Department of Ecology

To assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City services, please provide 24-hour advance 
notice to the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539 for additional arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs. 

1

http://www.agendease.com/manage/item.php?action=view&item_id=3191


  CITY COUNCIL AGENDA         
 865 SE Barrington Drive, Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

March 3, 2015    6:00 p.m. 

7. STAFF, MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator
b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

8. ORDINANCE AND RESOLUTIONS
a. Resolution 1501: Approval of Fairway Point Final Plat, Division 3

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS
a. Resolution 1503: 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendment Docket

10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

11. NEW BUSINESS
a. Economic Development Coordinator – Action to Approve Position Description
b. Approve Contract with Ameresco for Lighting Upgrade Project

12. ADJOURNMENT

As a courtesy to Council and the audience, PLEASE TURN YOUR CELL PHONES OFF before the meeting begins. 
During the meeting’s Public Comments section, Council will listen to your input regarding subjects of concern or 
interest that are not on the agenda. 

For scheduled public hearings, if you wish to speak, please sign your name to the sign-up sheet, located in the 
Council Chambers. The Council will take all information under advisement. To ensure your comments are recorded 
properly, state your name and address clearly into the microphone.  Please limit your comments to three minutes in 
order that other citizens have sufficient time to speak. 

Thank you for participating in your City Government! 

To assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City services, please provide 24-hour advance 
notice to the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539 for additional arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs. 2



3



Oak Harbor City Council 
Special Meeting Minutes - 3:00 p.m. 

February 20, 2015 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Scott Dudley called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley  City Administrator Dr. Cort 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao  City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Campbell  Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
Councilmember Rick Almberg Public Works Director Cathy Rosen  
Councilmember Bob Severns  Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Beth Munns  Deputy Chief of Police/Captain Teri Gardner 
Councilmember Servatius  Senior Services Administrator Mike McIntyre 

Executive Assistant to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
City Clerk Anna Thompson 

Councilmember Hizon was absent. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INVOCATION 

Councilmember Servatius led the invocation and Mayor Dudley led the pledge of allegiance. 

Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to Excuse Councilmember Hizon, motion seconded 
 by Councilmember Munns, unanimously approved. 

HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS 

PRESENTATION 

Ancient Egyptian Arabic Order Nobles Mystic Shrine – Latroleum Lawrence 

The Mayor announced that circumstances prevented Mr. Lawrence from appearing this 
afternoon. He will be rescheduled to a future meeting.  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion:   Councilmember Severns moved approve the Agenda as presented, motion seconded 
  by Councilmember Campbell, motion unanimously approved. 

4



CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 

Mayor Scott Dudley opened the citizen comment period at 3:03 p.m., no comments, closed at 
3:03 p.m. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

a. Minutes of the Regular Meeting held on February 3, 2015 and Special City Council
and Planning Commission Meeting on February 11, 2015

b. Approval of Accounts Payable and Payroll Check Numbers
c. Professional Services Agreement with ERCI – NE 4th Avenue Water Main Replace-

ment
d. Ordinance 1723: Repealing OHMC 5.40 entitled ‘Circuses, Carnivals, Traveling

Shows and Expeditions’
e. Ault Field Pump Station Contract Award
f. City-wide Auctioneer Agreement
g. Surplus and Sale of Dodge Charger
h. Interlocal Agreement - Auction Services with North Whidbey Fire
i. Interlocal Agreement - Auction Services with Island County
j. Interlocal Agreement - Auction Services with Oak Harbor School District

Councilmember Almberg pulled Consent Agenda Item 6.c. 

Motion:   Councilmember Servatius moved to approved Consent Agenda Items 6. “a” through 
 “b” and “d” through “j”, motion seconded by Councilmember Munns, unanimously 
 approved. 

Consent Agenda Item 6.c  Professional Services Agreement with ERCI – NE 4th Avenue Wa-
ter Main Replacement. 
Public Works Director Cathy Rosen provided clarification to the Council’s questions.       

Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve Consent Agenda Item 6.c, seconded by 
 Councilmember Munns, unanimously approved. 

MAYOR, STAFF AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 

City Administrator 

Dr. Cort announced that the City Council Workshop is scheduled for February 25th and the 
Regular City Council meeting is set for March 3rd. 

Mayor 

The Mayor informed the public that he and some of the Council and staff attended the AWC City 
Action Conference and met with Legislative officials in Olympia earlier this week.   

Councilmembers 

Councilmembers Paggao, Campbell and Munns commented on the AWC Conference. 

5



Councilmember Munns asked that staff provide an update on the 2015 Whidbey Island 
Marathon at the next council meeting. 

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

Ordinance 1722:  Extension of the Impact Fee Reduction  
Development Services Director Steve Powers provided the staff report. 

Mayor Dudley opened the item for public comment at 3:26 p.m., no comments, closed at 3:26 
p.m. 

Discussion among Councilmembers and Staff. 

Ordinance 1722:  Extension of the Impact Fee Reduction 

Motion:  Councilmember Munns moved to amend Ordinance Number 1722 to insert on the 
  Effective Date February 21 [2015] as well as the Pass Date to today 20th of February 
 2015, motion seconded by Councilmember Severns, majority passed.  

Councilmember Servatius opposed the Motion. 

Motion:  Councilmemebr Almberg moved to approve Ordinance Number 1722 as amended. 
 Motion seconded by Councilmember Campbell, majority approved. 

Councilmember Servatius opposed the Motion. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/PUBLIC MEETINGS 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

NEW BUSINESS 

ADJOURNMENT 

Councilmember Campbell moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Almberg, unani-
mously carried. 

The meeting adjourned at 3:47 p.m.  

  Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

6



Oak Harbor City Council 
Workshop Meeting Minutes - 3:00 p.m. 

February 25, 2015 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Scott Dudley called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley  City Administrator Dr. Cort 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao  Finance Director Dr. Merriman 
Councilmember Joel Servatius City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Tara Hizon   Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
Councilmember Rick Almberg Public Works Director Cathy Rosen  

Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Deputy Chief of Police/Captain Teri Gardner 
Purchasing Specialist Sandra Place 
Executive Assistant to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
City Clerk Anna Thompson 

Councilmembers Campbell, Munns, and Severns were absent. 

AGENDA 

1. Departmental Briefings
a. Schedule Council iPad Orientation

City Administrator Larry Cort introduced the item for discussion.  Councilmember Servatius and 
Council Members discussed scheduling a date to schedule a time to set up the Council with 
iPads. 

The Council scheduled the iPad orientation for March 17, 2014 at 4:00 p.m. 

2. Pending Agenda Items
a. Economic Development Position

Dr. Cort announced this item for discussion. 

Discussion among Councilmembers regarding this position. 

7



b. Implementing Energy Efficiency measure for the City

Public Works Director Cathy Rosen provided a summary of Energy Efficient Measures for the 
City. 

Updating City lights will save the City over sixty-two thousand dollars.   

Discussion among Council. 

c. Granicus, Inc. – Web-based solution for media-related services

Finance Director Dr. Doug Merriman provided a power point presentation of Granicus, Inc. to 
update media-related services for council meetings. 

Dr. Merriman explained what media services Granicus can provide for the City Council Meet-
ings.  

Discussion among Council Members. 

d. Authorization to Bid-Two (2) Front Load Refuse Trucks

Public Works Director Cathy Rosen briefed the council on the authorization to bid for One Front 
Load Refuse Truck. 

Discussion among Council Members. 

e. Purchase authorization – three patrol vehicles

Public Works Director Cathy Rosen provided a brief summary for future purchase of three patrol 
vehicles.  

Staff and Council briefly discussed this item. 

f. RFP for Architectural Services for the Fire Station

Fire Chief Ray Merrill discussed the need to solicit Request for Proposals for Architectural Ser-
vices to design a new Fire Station.  

Discussion among Council Members. 

3. Emerging Issues
a. Fire Recovery USA

Fire Chief Ray Merrill provided a brief report on this item. 

Discussion among Council Members. 

8



ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Dudley adjourned the meeting at 4:14 p.m. 

  Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

9



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
and Payroll Check Numbers

FROM: Dr. Merriman, Finance Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 6.b
Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
and Payroll Check Numbers

FROM: Dr. Merriman, Finance Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
prior prior to the City Council meeting for appropiate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Chekc Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 161233 through 161575 in the amount of $301,572.26.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 33770 through 33925.

- EFT check numbers 688 through 692.

- Payroll check numbers 97817 through 97869.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
prior prior to the City Council meeting for appropiate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Chekc Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 161233 through 161575 in the amount of $301,572.26.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 33770 through 33925.

- EFT check numbers 688 through 692.

- Payroll check numbers 97817 through 97869.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

10



PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing (1)
2. Voucher Listing (2)
3. Voucher Listing (3)

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing (1)
2. Voucher Listing (2)
3. Voucher Listing (3)

11

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424908440_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424911087_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424908548_at.pdf


02/10/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

12:22:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 161233 2/10/2015 0001609  ALL QUALITY STITCHES 474 JACKETS  293.49

Total :  293.49

 161234 2/10/2015 0005001  ARAMARK 938116000 DEC 2014/UNIFORM SERVICES  1,046.49

Total :  1,046.49

 161235 2/10/2015 0000077  BARGE, JA EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  542.36

Total :  542.36

 161236 2/10/2015 0006063  CELLEBRITE USA, INC Q-38956-Y SOFTWARE  3,098.99

Total :  3,098.99

 161237 2/10/2015 0000225  DAILY JOURNAL OF COMMERCE 3295559 BID CALL/AULT FIELD BOOST PUMP  478.80

Total :  478.80

 161238 2/10/2015 0005622  EC POWER SYSTEMS 418000 GENERATOR TESTING  436.43

Total :  436.43

 161239 2/10/2015 0006747  EQUINOX RESEARCH & CONSULTING 12-442-9 2014 PROF SVC/ARCHAEOLOGIST  7,347.34

Total :  7,347.34

 161240 2/10/2015 0000330  GARDNER, TERI EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  54.03

Total :  54.03

 161241 2/10/2015 0003656  GREAT FLOORS, LLC 620929 FLOORING INSTALLATION  2,836.03

 9,059.91FLOORING INSTALLATION620931

Total :  11,895.94

 161242 2/10/2015 0006452  HOAGLAND, JAMES EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  133.02

Total :  133.02

 161243 2/10/2015 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 2093157 PLASTIC FIT/VALVE BOX  29.62

 234.66LED LIGHTS2701639

 26.08MARINA TOOL3613775

 24.841/4X7SDSBT/TCON5116X24042050

Total :  315.20

1Page:

12



02/10/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

12:22:05PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 161244 2/10/2015 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC O141843 TMT STORAGE  339.14

Total :  339.14

 161245 2/10/2015 0003694  RECYCLING, WASHINGTON STATE ASSOC OF300000472 SMALL ORGANIZATION  225.00

Total :  225.00

 161246 2/10/2015 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING WCW606915 BIDS BOOSTER PUMP  406.20

Total :  406.20

 161247 2/10/2015 0005899  WASHINGTON AUDIOLOGY SERVICES 45219 HEARING TESTS  120.00

Total :  120.00

Bank total :  26,732.43 15 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 26,732.43Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 15

2Page:

13



02/20/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

11:23:18AM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 161446 2/17/2015 0001916  KING COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 021715 BAIL/WARRENT #312097124  5,000.00

Total :  5,000.00

 161447 2/17/2015 0007748  AMERICAN INTERNATIONAL MEDICAL 021315 VSD BOARD  1,190.00

Total :  1,190.00

 161448 2/20/2015 0000967  ECOLOGY, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 2015-WA0020567A WASTEWATER PERMIT  10,282.68

 3,384.50STORMWATER PERMIT2015-WAR045554A

Total :  13,667.18

 161449 2/20/2015 0000380  HEALTH, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 62650 OPERATING PERMIT  9,791.30

Total :  9,791.30

 161450 2/20/2015 0000561  MERRIMAN, DOUGLAS TRAVEL ADVANCE1 TRAVEL ADVANCE  289.50

 112.50TRAVEL ADVANCETRAVEL ADVANCE1

Total :  402.00

 161451 2/20/2015 0007722  MERRIMAN, RYAN 020415 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

Bank total :  30,070.48 6 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 30,070.48Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 6

1Page:

14



02/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 2:12:20PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 161458 2/25/2015 0000960  REVENUE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 021815 SALES/USE TAX  46,825.88

Total :  46,825.88

 161459 2/25/2015 0000028  ALL ISLAND LOCK & KEY 23624 KEYS  15.65

 42.61PRIVACY LEVER SET23633

 66.50KEYS49575

 68.75LOCKOUT SERVICE/COMBINATION CHANGE49577

Total :  193.51

 161460 2/25/2015 0002044  ANACORTES.NET/HOW IT WORKS 35904 FEB 2015/WEB HOSTING  15.95

 650.00MOBILE PAYMENTS47420

Total :  665.95

 161461 2/25/2015 0007077  ANDREWS, SARA 021915 PUBLIC DEFENSE  300.00

 600.00PUBLIC DEFENSE021915A

Total :  900.00

 161462 2/25/2015 0006865  ARMADA 022315 COLLECTION FEES/38-050021-02/04-127010-0  210.12

Total :  210.12

 161463 2/25/2015 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0702207-IN FUEL  18,830.43

 3,867.34FUEL0703270-IN

Total :  22,697.77

 161464 2/25/2015 0000064  AVANTI INTERNATIONAL 31139 CARTRIDGES  1,588.00

Total :  1,588.00

 161465 2/25/2015 0000065  AVOCET ENVIRONMENTAL TESTING 1500441-IN TESTING  122.00

Total :  122.00

 161466 2/25/2015 0004733  BARRON HEATING & AIR COND, INC 159788 HEATER REPLACEMENT  16,609.36

Total :  16,609.36

 161467 2/25/2015 0000081  BAY PRINTING 23388 FLYERS/POSTERS  92.40

Total :  92.40

 161468 2/25/2015 0000091  BENS CLEANER SALES, INC 256780 CLEANING CHEMICALS  1,019.08

1Page:

15



02/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 2:12:20PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,019.08 161468 2/25/2015 0000091 0000091  BENS CLEANER SALES, INC

 161469 2/25/2015 0000103  BLADE CHEVROLET, INC 156582 HANDLE  55.22

Total :  55.22

 161470 2/25/2015 0000112  BOB BARKER COMPANY, INC WEB000356683 TOOTHPASTE/SOAP/BRUSHES  234.75

Total :  234.75

 161471 2/25/2015 0007749  BOWEN, DAVID 021115 PAVER SEALER REIMBURSEMENT  161.12

Total :  161.12

 161472 2/25/2015 0000962  BUILDING OFFICIALS, WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF29853 REGISTRATION/BUXTON/ANDERSON  600.00

Total :  600.00

 161473 2/25/2015 0000962  BUILDING OFFICIALS, WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF022315 REGISTRATION/WEST  525.00

Total :  525.00

 161474 2/25/2015 0000139  BUXTON, MIKE TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  106.50

 195.00TRAVEL ADVANCETRAVEL ADVANCE

Total :  301.50

 161475 2/25/2015 0003675  CAMPBELL, JAMES TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  172.48

Total :  172.48

 161476 2/25/2015 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 174664695211 SUPPLIES  1,133.59

Total :  1,133.59

 161477 2/25/2015 0006215  CAROLLO 0139052 2014 PROF SVC/PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING AN 12,538.73

Total :  12,538.73

 161478 2/25/2015 0006016  CARTER, MARGOT L 021215 PUBLIC DEFENSE  1,200.00

Total :  1,200.00

 161479 2/25/2015 0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS 03963180678 NATURAL GAS/#210  37.91

 311.49NATURAL GAS/POLICE STATION08793000004

 604.25NATURAL GAS/#20811829220273

 88.47NATURAL GAS/#20712470743597

 10.60NATURAL GAS/#20513275491754

2Page:

16



02/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 2:12:20PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 161479 2/25/2015 (Continued)0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS

 10.00NATURAL GAS/TREATMENT PLANT18583000007

 1,250.32NATURAL GAS/FIRE STATION36624000000

 223.71NATURAL GAS/ANIMAL SHELTER40661045647

 10.60NATURAL GAS/#20245420760055

 10.60NATURAL GAS/#20157309970234

 467.01NATURAL GAS/CITY HALL58793000009

 91.50NATURAL GAS/#20462337906945

 52.07NATURAL GAS/#20967984882349

 1,770.29NATURAL GAS/CITY SHOP80434000008

 64.39NATURAL GAS/ANNEX82193000005

 109.22NATURAL GAS/ADULT CARE CENTER90134000000

 10.60NATURAL GAS/#20392612025210

Total :  5,123.03

 161480 2/25/2015 0007752  CASCADE RADIO GROUP IN-1150169834 ADVERTISING  903.00

Total :  903.00

 161481 2/25/2015 0000170  CHIEF SUPPLY 217582 GLOVES  72.00

Total :  72.00

 161482 2/25/2015 0000188  CODE PUBLISHING COMPANY 48960 MUNICIPAL CODE UPDATE  2,383.27

Total :  2,383.27

 161483 2/25/2015 0005773  COMCAST 8498300290363841 INTERNET  228.48

Total :  228.48

 161484 2/25/2015 0000211  CREDIT BUREAU OF ISLAND COUNTY 021315 COLLECTION FEE/04-017000-01  54.20

Total :  54.20

 161485 2/25/2015 0000220  CUMMINS NORTHWEST, INC 001-41257 COVERAGE  3,369.70

 463.06INSITE LITE REGISTRATION010-13223

Total :  3,832.76

 161486 2/25/2015 0000256  DAY WIRELESS SYSTEMS 378539 PROGRAMMING  203.82

 285.86PARTS/CONVERSION379254

Total :  489.68

3Page:

17



02/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

 2:12:20PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 161487 2/25/2015 0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS 2289 REPAIRS  91.63

Total :  91.63

 161488 2/25/2015 0000253  DIVERSINT 14100830 DUAL PORT ENTERPRISE HD  576.69

Total :  576.69

 161489 2/25/2015 0005840  DUDLEY, SCOTT TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  421.92

Total :  421.92

 161490 2/25/2015 0000279  EMPLOYMENT SECURITY, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF945052-10-7 4TH QTR 2014/UNEMPLOYMENT  9,399.93

Total :  9,399.93

 161491 2/25/2015 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK19269 FASTENERS  13.35

 37.06FASTENERSWAOAK19283

 32.37FASTENERSWAOAK19296

 36.14FASTENERSWAOAK19309

 14.34TIESWAOAK19314

 34.99FASTENERSWAOAK19323

 42.71MAGNETWAOAK19327

Total :  210.96

 161492 2/25/2015 0007141  FREEDOM PROPERTIES, LLC 022815 FEB 2015/ANIMAL SHELTER  2,500.00

Total :  2,500.00

 161493 2/25/2015 0004971  FREEMAN, DENISE L 2015-10 ZIPPER REPLACEMENT  37.98

Total :  37.98

 161494 2/25/2015 0007750  FROC, JUDY 021915 CAMP FEE REFUND  25.00

Total :  25.00

 161495 2/25/2015 0000355  FRONTIER 007-9244 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  239.74

 76.60CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-0841

 63.99CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-1060

 60.90CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1572

 72.15CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-2111

 63.84CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-3121

 41.78CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-5190

 58.55CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6794

4Page:

18



02/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

 2:12:20PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 161495 2/25/2015 (Continued)0000355  FRONTIER

 63.84CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2530

 184.36CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-5551

 72.84CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8702

 35.11CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2694

 26.50CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2715

Total :  1,060.20

 161496 2/25/2015 0000326  FRONTIER BUILDING SUPPLY 104422 LUMBER  8.76

Total :  8.76

 161497 2/25/2015 0001706  GARDNER, PAT EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  752.00

Total :  752.00

 161498 2/25/2015 0002767  GATEWAY CONTROLS, INC 2014997 GATE REPAIRS  450.43

Total :  450.43

 161499 2/25/2015 0002940  GRAY & OSBORNE, INC 13518.00-0000020 2014 PROF SVC/WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 3,678.28

 4,522.69PROF SVC/WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS13518.00-0000021

Total :  8,200.97

 161500 2/25/2015 0000999  GRCC/WW 021215 CERTIFICATION EXAM/TYHUIS  200.00

 225.00REGISTRATION/HUBBARD139666

 200.00REGISTRATION/TYHUIS139883

Total :  625.00

 161501 2/25/2015 0000345  GREATER OAK HBR CHAMBER OF COM 30182 MARKETING GRANT  371.06

 742.12MARKETING GRANT30183

 8,333.34FEB 2015/VISITOR CENTER GRANT30184

Total :  9,446.52

 161502 2/25/2015 0002747  GUARDIAN SECURITY 559389 ALARM MONITORING  846.00

Total :  846.00

 161503 2/25/2015 0002596  HABITAT FOR HUMANITY 021915 DUMPSTER DEPOSIT REFUND  1,262.12

Total :  1,262.12

 161504 2/25/2015 0000323  HD FOWLER COMPANY I3842784 FREIGHT  57.63

5Page:

19



02/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

 2:12:20PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 161504 2/25/2015 (Continued)0000323  HD FOWLER COMPANY

 68.85ADAPTER/FLANGESI3842905

 96.51COUPLINGI3843105

 47.98FLANGESI3843772

 123.25ELLS/TEES/BUSHINGI3844588

 380.18ADAPTER/FLANGESI3844786

Total :  774.40

 161505 2/25/2015 0006629  HIZON, TARA TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  172.48

Total :  172.48

 161506 2/25/2015 0005250  HONEYMOON BAY COFFEE ROASTERS 403212 DEC 2014 COFFEE SUPPLIES  93.22

 94.22COFFEE SUPPLIES896060

Total :  187.44

 161507 2/25/2015 0000397  ID CHECKING GUIDE 669481 2015 ID CHECKING GUIDE  29.95

Total :  29.95

 161508 2/25/2015 0005872  IMPAIRED DRIVING IMPACT PANEL 021615 DUI/UNDERAGE DRINKING PREVENTION PANEL  166.67

Total :  166.67

 161509 2/25/2015 0000417  INDUSTRIAL BOLT & SUPPLY 580971-1 GRIND WHEEL/TIE  647.15

Total :  647.15

 161510 2/25/2015 0000415  ISLAND DISPOSAL 020315 JAN 2015/COLLECTION CHARGES  10,918.76

Total :  10,918.76

 161511 2/25/2015 0000433  ISLAND DRUG 114509197494 INMATE MEDS  12.24

 28.35MEDS114509197731

Total :  40.59

 161512 2/25/2015 0006952  JUPIN, TIMOTHY EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  189.96

Total :  189.96

 161513 2/25/2015 0004007  KAMAK, RAJESH EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  730.00

Total :  730.00

 161514 2/25/2015 0000476  KERR, JACK 01-15 JAN 2015/PUBLIC DEFENSE SCREENING  1,400.00

6Page:

20



02/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

 2:12:20PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 161514 2/25/2015 (Continued)0000476  KERR, JACK

 1,400.00FEB 2015/PUBLIC DEFENSE SCREENING02-15

Total :  2,800.00

 161515 2/25/2015 0000494  LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES 5035741MB ASPHALT  488.64

Total :  488.64

 161516 2/25/2015 0007201  LIFETEK TRAINING, INC 15-099 ANNUAL ALIGNMENT  60.00

Total :  60.00

 161517 2/25/2015 0000515  LOGGERS & CONTRACTORS, INC 00063061 HOSE/COUPLINGS/HANDLES  2,720.93

Total :  2,720.93

 161518 2/25/2015 0000522  LUEHR, TOM 1 DRIVING SERVICES  78.00

 75.00DRIVING SERVICES1

Total :  153.00

 161519 2/25/2015 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 190813 GROCERIES  200.35

 489.53GROCERIES591764

Total :  689.88

 161520 2/25/2015 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC P38121 JAN 2015/POSTAGE FOR LATE NOTICES  466.83

 2,915.70JAN 2015/POSTAGE FOR STATEMENTSP38122

Total :  3,382.53

 161521 2/25/2015 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC 38121 JAN 2015/LATE NOTICES  273.27

 885.91JAN 2015/MAILING SERVICES FOR STATEMENTS38122

Total :  1,159.18

 161522 2/25/2015 0007450  MAZZOLI, KELLYE TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  182.22

Total :  182.22

 161523 2/25/2015 0000561  MERRIMAN, DOUGLAS TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  177.10

Total :  177.10

 161524 2/25/2015 0004818  MICHAEL BOBBINK LAND USE SRVCS 021515 FEB 2015/HEARING EXAMINER  1,500.00

Total :  1,500.00

7Page:

21



02/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

 2:12:20PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 161525 2/25/2015 0000565  MICROFLEX, INC 00022275 ONLINE SERVICE  1,304.40

Total :  1,304.40

 161526 2/25/2015 0000538  MID AMERICAN RESEARCH CHEMICAL 0544034-IN ZYME-CRETE  379.42

Total :  379.42

 161527 2/25/2015 0005445  MONTOYA, MATTHEW J 002 JAN 2015/PUBLIC DEFENSE  10,000.00

Total :  10,000.00

 161528 2/25/2015 0007670  NETWORKFLEET, INC OSV000000220114 MONTHLY SERVICE  323.27

Total :  323.27

 161529 2/25/2015 0003946  OAC SERVICES, INC 129089 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR WWT  2,127.67

Total :  2,127.67

 161530 2/25/2015 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 250857 FASTENERS  6.63

 8.46STRAP/WALL ANCHOR251254

 32.58GRAFITTI REMOVER251296

 10.86GRAFITTI REMOVER251324

 10.86SPRAYPAINT251336

 3.79STRIP251367

 92.84SPRING251372

 26.07SNAP RND EYE251386

 16.03PAINTBRUSH/CAULK/MAGNET251391

-9.23MAGNET251400

 36.94HOSE/BALL VALVE251429

 4.12PLANO CASE251434

 11.94RODS251466

 9.76CEMENT/PRIMER251475

 45.07HOSE/CAN OPENER/CARWASH251494

 10.86CLEANER251499

 1.72PLATES251539

-5.97RODS251547

 11.94WASHERS/BENDS251581

 47.85FASTENERS/FLANGE/CAPS/NIPPLE/GASKET251587

 13.54TRAP/WASHERS/FLANGES251656

 13.53TAPE/ROLLER251661

8Page:

22



02/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

 2:12:20PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 161530 2/25/2015 (Continued)0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE

 46.14SAW HOLE/DRILL BITS/TOOL251668

 15.20GRAFITTI REMOVER251675

 5.42EPSOM SALT251680

 13.95SCREWS/FASTENERS251684

 31.25BRUSHES/BULBS251723

 8.14CAPS251752

 1.08WALL PLATE251754

 3.79CAPS251767

 13.03PAINT REMOVER251769

-1.63CAP251772

 55.35TAPE251790

Total :  591.91

 161531 2/25/2015 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-229316 FILTERS  3.31

 13.12U-JOINT001-229453

 59.17BRUSHES001-229763

 5.60FILTERS001-230387

 39.22FILTERS001-230470

 78.44FILTERS001-230471

 16.82FILTERS001-230538

Total :  215.68

 161532 2/25/2015 0006743  OAK HARBOR ELKS LODGE 022815 2015 MARATHON SERVICES  3,000.00

Total :  3,000.00

 161533 2/25/2015 0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC 0084644 TIRES  143.22

 276.05TIRES0084910

Total :  419.27

 161534 2/25/2015 0000702  PAYNE, RANDY EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  162.89

Total :  162.89

 161535 2/25/2015 0000709  PERS 01089388 JAN 2015/UNFUNDED LIABILITY  26.98

Total :  26.98

 161536 2/25/2015 0007751  PHENOVA 112368 WP DISSOLVED OXYGEN  102.53

9Page:

23



02/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

 2:12:20PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  102.53 161536 2/25/2015 0007751 0007751  PHENOVA

 161537 2/25/2015 0000730  POWELL, JANIS 1 DRIVING SERVICES  102.40

Total :  102.40

 161538 2/25/2015 0004622  POWERS-RANG, LISA TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  212.50

Total :  212.50

 161539 2/25/2015 0000746  PUGET SAFETY EQUIPMENT 0024501-IN GLOVES/SHIELD  252.10

Total :  252.10

 161540 2/25/2015 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200000136776 ELECTRICITY/1301 SE CATALINA DR  36.94

 2,035.33ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR DISPLT200000881421

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1501 SE CITY BEACH ST WIND200000919684

 2,764.97ELECTRICITY/CITY SHOP200000947859

 11.68ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR EBATH200001097589

 13.69ELECTRICITY/1888 NE 5TH AVE PUMP200001884218

 230.10ELECTRICITY/30505 ST ROUTE 20200002036164

 107.61ELECTRICITY/34777 STATE ROUTE 20 SIGN200002036719

 149.26ELECTRICITY/BTWN BAYSHORE DR & BEEKSMA D200002036917

 24.32ELECTRICITY/2000 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST200002037097

 10.77ELECTRICITY/1780 SW SPRINGFIELD CT PUMP200002037261

 105.50ELECTRICITY/3285 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS LFTST200002037501

 10.16ELECTRICITY/552 NW CLIPPER DR200002170617

 10.16ELECTRICITY/2075 SW FT200002511539

 189.44ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR CMFTST200002723381

 16.84ELECTRICITY/1000 SE IRELAND ST200003267636

 164.46ELECTRICITY/1957 FORT NUGENT RD RESTRM200003459654

 16.55ELECTRICITY/650 NE 7TH AVE SEWAGE200004342099

 170.36ELECTRICITY/800 SE MIDWAY BLVD200004562878

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1577 NW 8TH AVE200004856627

 10.16ELECTRICITY/SMITH PARK200005263310

 10.64ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR WKITCH200005461666

 30.74ELECTRICITY/NEIL PK & HOLLAND GARDENS200005643446

 5,311.75ELECTRICITY/700 SE PIONEER WAY LAGOON200005933094

 13.96ELECTRICITY/5941 STATE ROUTE 20200006103952

 172.38ELECTRICITY/SW ERIS ST SW BARRINGTON DR200007268135

10Page:

24



02/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

 2:12:20PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 161540 2/25/2015 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 231.21ELECTRICITY/700 AV W & MIDWAY200007702943

 10.16ELECTRICITY/75 SE JEROME ST200007824192

 10.77ELECTRICITY/FABER ST & HARVEST DR200008386993

 19.69ELECTRICITY/ANNEX200008816189

 34.38ELECTRICITY/2330 SW ROSARIO PL200010322895

 112.25ELECTRICITY/1948 NW CROSBY AVE200010499248

 25.32ELECTRICITY/1661 NE 16TH AVE SWRSTA200010499446

 102.75ELECTRICITY/651 SE BAYSHORE DR LGHTS200010530240

 10.77ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200010530802

 263.44ELECTRICITY/940 SE PIONEER WAY CAB200010531024

 10.77ELECTRICITY/1300 NE BIG BERRY LOOP IRRIG200010531172

 201.79ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR CABI200010531354

 124.97ELECTRICITY/800 SE DOCK ST200010531941

 30.18ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR BALLPK200010699706

 1,299.43ELECTRICITY/SR 20 & 650 AV W200011316839

 30.65ELECTRICITY/ADULT CARE CENTER200011551930

 12.78ELECTRICITY/285 SE JEROME ST200011579964

 10.16ELECTRICITY/128 E WHIDBEY AVE200012220337

 1,200.65ELECTRICITY/FIRE STATION200012278087

 4,063.27ELECTRICITY/TREATMENT PLANT200012425357

 22.18ELECTRICITY/PIONEER PARK200012838765

 4,130.11ELECTRICITY/MARINA200013370750

 4,074.68ELECTRICITY/672 CHRISTIAN RD PUMP200013734963

 176.48ELECTRICITY/1540 SE PIONEER WAY LIFTST200013968405

 116.01ELECTRICITY/1370 SE DOCK ST200014151886

 271.30ELECTRICITY/700 AV W & 80 NW200014366534

 864.98ELECTRICITY/CITY HALL200014596478

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1678 SW 8TH AVE200015399153

 125.95ELECTRICITY/600 NE 7TH AVE200015618321

 69.68ELECTRICITY/287 SE CABOT DR SWRPMP200015685833

 547.24ELECTRICITY/690 SW HELLER RD WTRTWR200017255619

 437.38ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200017441482

 125.99ELECTRICITY/1367 NW CROSBY AVE SIGNAL200017575347

 74.46ELECTRICITY/3300 OLD GOLDIE RD PUMP200017653656

 186.87ELECTRICITY/1000 SW THORNBERRY DR PUMP200017654415

 12.64ELECTRICITY/2081 NE 9TH AVE SWRPMP200017853025

11Page:

25



02/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

 2:12:20PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 161540 2/25/2015 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 57.66ELECTRICITY/90 SE PIONEER WAY LIGHTS200019043344

 37.46ELECTRICITY/1137 NW KATHLEEN DR PUMP200019500517

 41.54ELECTRICITY/626 CHRISTIAN DR200020179194

 786.90ELECTRICITY/SENIOR CENTER200020235012

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR KITEST200020308330

 86.47ELECTRICITY/980 SW MCCROHAN ST PUMP200022441113

 41.63ELECTRICITY/945 E WHIDBEY AVE #B200023231067

 63.56ELECTRICITY/700 W HELLER RD TRAFFI200023360569

 31.72ELECTRICITY/1285 NE TAFTSON ST LFTPMP200024715845

 299.10ELECTRICITY/33500 STATE ROUTE 20200025075157

 166.45ELECTRICITY/ANIMAL SHELTER220000598098

 71.59ELECTRICITY/END OF GUN CLUB ROAD220002244337

 13.34ELECTRICITY/SW FAIRWAY PIONT DR & SW CAR220002247165

 565.05ELECTRICITY/#101220003651407

 573.14ELECTRICITY/275 SE PIONEER WAY220003735804

 24.52ELECTRICITY/1770 NE GOLDIE ST PUMP220005593946

 494.71ELECTRICITY/301 SE PIONEER WAY220005790955

 391.92ELECTRICITY/STAYSAIL RV PARK300000005003

 26.58ELECTRICITY/2220 SW VISTA PARK DR300000009906

 62.39ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000010409

 375.96ELECTRICITY/INTSCTN OF MIDWAY & NE 8 AVE300000010458

 241.36ELECTRICITY/900 SE MIDWAY BLVD300000010516

Total :  35,152.80

 161541 2/25/2015 0002508  RINEY PRODUCTION SERVICES 10-1404 TAPING SERVICES  2,172.84

Total :  2,172.84

 161542 2/25/2015 0003024  ROBBINS, EPHRAIM TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  248.50

Total :  248.50

 161543 2/25/2015 0000801  SEA WESTERN, INC 182194 STREAMLIGHT  538.07

Total :  538.07

 161544 2/25/2015 0004415  SEATTLE PUMP 15-0160 VACTOR CONNECTORS  139.17

 1,858.77HOSE/END WELDMENT15-0363

12Page:

26



02/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

 2:12:20PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,997.94 161544 2/25/2015 0004415 0004415  SEATTLE PUMP

 161545 2/25/2015 0000809  SENIOR SERVICES OF ISLAND OH01-2015 JAN 2015/SENIOR SERVICES  1,500.00

Total :  1,500.00

 161546 2/25/2015 0007029  SERVATIUS, JOEL TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  175.28

Total :  175.28

 161547 2/25/2015 0000816  SHELL FLEET PLUS 0000000065163545502 FUEL  19.60

Total :  19.60

 161548 2/25/2015 0000817  SHELLEY, TIM TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  21.50

Total :  21.50

 161549 2/25/2015 0000822  SHRED-IT USA, INC 9404864632 SHREDDING  716.59

-663.62SHREDDING94630560

Total :  52.97

 161550 2/25/2015 0007754  SIGNMART SM-17247 HAND HELD STOP SIGNS  133.20

Total :  133.20

 161551 2/25/2015 0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC 14-299777 TRIANGLE FLARE KIT  22.79

 22.79TRIANGLE FLARE KIT14-299778

 237.55AUTOMATIC BRAKE14-299884

 14.09LENS14-299885

Total :  297.22

 161552 2/25/2015 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 420964 GRASS SEED  7.60

Total :  7.60

 161553 2/25/2015 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING 702536 JAN 2015/PUBLICATIONS-ACCT#80125600  828.27

 169.46CITY APPLICATIONSWCW613689

 170.70CITY APPLICATIONSWCW613701

 152.01CITY NOTICESWCW614031

 138.31CITY ORDINANCESWCW614042

Total :  1,458.75

 161554 2/25/2015 0000851  SPRINT 182311697 LONG DISTANCE  5.76

13Page:

27



02/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

 2:12:20PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  5.76 161554 2/25/2015 0000851 0000851  SPRINT

 161555 2/25/2015 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3254498252 TONER  69.25

 79.24BINDERS/TABS3254498256

 123.85TONER3254498259

 1,166.60TONER/INDEX3254498260

 25.20CLEANER3255060047

 554.31COVER/ADAPTER3255060050

 31.15STAPLER/STAPLES/MOUSE PAD3255060054

 130.41ADAPTER3256245414

 32.74FILE/STAMP3256245419

 55.05CABLE3256245421

Total :  2,267.80

 161556 2/25/2015 0005786  STOWES SHOES & CLOTHING 0008659 BOOTS/BAZA  189.02

 200.00BOOTS/WILLIAMS0008915

Total :  389.02

 161557 2/25/2015 0003749  STUMP, PATRICK L 1 DRIVING SERVICES  120.00

Total :  120.00

 161558 2/25/2015 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1048376 PEST EXTERMINATION  54.35

 59.79PEST EXTERMINATION1048780

Total :  114.14

 161559 2/25/2015 0005273  TANDEM SERVICE CORP, INC 1132426 PUMPING FEES  266.31

Total :  266.31

 161560 2/25/2015 0007265  THOMPSON, ANNA 021815 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

Total :  20.00

 161561 2/25/2015 0000923  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 0000A0182W055 SHIPPING  11.76

 27.73SHIPPING0000A0182W065

Total :  39.49

 161562 2/25/2015 0000926  USABLUEBOOK 561535 ROOT CONTROL  167.04

Total :  167.04

14Page:

28



02/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

 2:12:20PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 161563 2/25/2015 0000932  VERIZON WIRELESS 9740246781 CURRENT COMM CHARGES  5,182.45

Total :  5,182.45

 161564 2/25/2015 0005469  WASHINGTON MARRIOTT WARDMAN PK 022315 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS  6,952.44

Total :  6,952.44

 161565 2/25/2015 0001052  WASHINGTON STATE PATROL I15005450 BACKGROUND CHECKS  462.00

Total :  462.00

 161566 2/25/2015 0002032  WASHINGTON WASTEWATER PERSONNL 021315 APPLICATION/ROBBINS  15.00

Total :  15.00

 161567 2/25/2015 0000985  WASTE MANAGEMENT 021015 DUMPSTER DEPOSIT REFUND  1,257.06

Total :  1,257.06

 161568 2/25/2015 0001055  WATERWORX DIVE SERVICE 021215 UNDERWATER SERVICES  2,000.08

Total :  2,000.08

 161569 2/25/2015 0006853  WEED, GRAAFSTRA & BENSON, INC, LAW OFFICES OF32 PPROF SVC/GENERAL  6,979.00

Total :  6,979.00

 161570 2/25/2015 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 234820 GRIND WHEEL  26.82

 4.34FITTING236335

Total :  31.16

 161571 2/25/2015 0001007  WHIDBEY CLEANERS 266315 GARMENTS  13.04

Total :  13.04

 161572 2/25/2015 0007753  WL CONSTRUCTION SUPPLY, LLC 6206 BLADE  389.99

Total :  389.99

 161573 2/25/2015 0001037  WORK OUTFITTERS 50310 BOOTS/BOONSTRA  165.96

Total :  165.96

 161574 2/25/2015 0001067  ZEP SALES & SERVICE 9001452806 CHERRY BOMB COMPLETE  135.77

Total :  135.77

 161575 2/25/2015 0001068  ZUMAR INDUSTRIES, INC 0174346 SH248SMA  849.16

15Page:

29



02/25/2015

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

 2:12:20PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  849.16 161575 2/25/2015 0001068 0001068  ZUMAR INDUSTRIES, INC

Bank total :  274,839.83 118 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 274,839.83Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 118

16Page:

30



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: Update to the Transportation 
Element of the Comprehensive 
Plan - Consultant Request for 
Proposal

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize staff to issue a Request for Proposal to qualified transportation consulting firms for 
services needed to develop the update to the Transportation Element of the Oak Harbor Comprehensive 
Plan.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 6.c
Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: Update to the Transportation 
Element of the Comprehensive 
Plan - Consultant Request for 
Proposal

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize staff to issue a Request for Proposal to qualified transportation consulting firms for 
services needed to develop the update to the Transportation Element of the Oak Harbor Comprehensive 
Plan.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATIONBACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The purpose of this agenda bill is to request authorization to issue a Request for Proposal to qualified 
transportation consultants for updating the Transportation Element of the Oak Harbor Comprehensive 
Plan.

The Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan is required under RCW 36.70A.070. An update 
to the Transportation Element is required on or before June 30, 2016 under RCW 36.70A.130.

Much of the work required to develop the update to the Transportation Element is of a specialized 
nature. City staff does not have the resources and manpower to accomplish the tasks needed for this 
project.

The Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan is intended to provide guidance regarding 
necessary improvements to the City’s transportation infrastructure.  Major items to be addressed in the 
plan include:

 Travel demand forecasting
 Public outreach
 Development of a prioritized list of transportation projects to meet current and future needs
 Identification of necessary street networks and ROW corridors with emphasis on the southwest 

portion of the City’s Urban Growth Area, and

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The purpose of this agenda bill is to request authorization to issue a Request for Proposal to qualified 
transportation consultants for updating the Transportation Element of the Oak Harbor Comprehensive 
Plan.

The Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan is required under RCW 36.70A.070. An update 
to the Transportation Element is required on or before June 30, 2016 under RCW 36.70A.130.

Much of the work required to develop the update to the Transportation Element is of a specialized 
nature. City staff does not have the resources and manpower to accomplish the tasks needed for this 
project.

The Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan is intended to provide guidance regarding 
necessary improvements to the City’s transportation infrastructure.  Major items to be addressed in the 
plan include:

 Travel demand forecasting
 Public outreach
 Development of a prioritized list of transportation projects to meet current and future needs
 Identification of necessary street networks and ROW corridors with emphasis on the southwest

portion of the City’s Urban Growth Area, and

31

http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70a.070
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70a.130


 Estimates of total project costs (engineering, permitting, construction, etc.)

As required by RCW 36.70A, a financial analysis comparing prioritized transportation needs against 
probable funding resources is also part of the plan.  Recommendations on funding options will be 
provided in the financial analysis.    

Upon Council authorization, a Request for Proposal will be forwarded to three qualified transportation 
consultant firms selected from the Municipal Research and Services Center (MRSC) consultant roster. 
Responding firms will submit written proposals which will be evaluated by staff. A City interview panel 
will be formed and the responding consultants will each present their proposals in person. The interview
panel will then select the consultant firm deemed most qualified for the project. Staff will begin 
negotiations with the selected firm to establish a scope of services and fee for the project. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
October 21, 2014 - Council approved The Surface Transportation Program – regional grant application
for funding the update to the Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan.

December 16, 2014 - Council approved Resolution 14-53 on accepting the terms of the Washington 
State Department of Transportation Local Agency Agreement for utilizing federal funds for updating the 

 Estimates of total project costs (engineering, permitting, construction, etc.)

As required by RCW 36.70A, a financial analysis comparing prioritized transportation needs against 
probable funding resources is also part of the plan.  Recommendations on funding options will be 
provided in the financial analysis.    

Upon Council authorization, a Request for Proposal will be forwarded to three qualified transportation 
consultant firms selected from the Municipal Research and Services Center (MRSC) consultant roster. 
Responding firms will submit written proposals which will be evaluated by staff. A City interview panel 
will be formed and the responding consultants will each present their proposals in person. The interview 
panel will then select the consultant firm deemed most qualified for the project. Staff will begin 
negotiations with the selected firm to establish a scope of services and fee for the project. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
October 21, 2014 - Council approved The Surface Transportation Program – regional grant application 
for funding the update to the Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan.

December 16, 2014 - Council approved Resolution 14-53 on accepting the terms of the Washington 
State Department of Transportation Local Agency Agreement for utilizing federal funds for updating the State Department of Transportation Local Agency Agreement for utilizing federal funds for updating the 
Transportation Element of the Oak Harbor Comprehensive Plan.

This item has not been presented at a Council workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. 2016 City of Oak Harbor Transportation Element Request for Proposal

State Department of Transportation Local Agency Agreement for utilizing federal funds for updating the 
Transportation Element of the Oak Harbor Comprehensive Plan.

This item has not been presented at a Council workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. 2016 City of Oak Harbor Transportation Element Request for Proposal

32

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424717147_at.pdf


33



34



35



36



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: Wastewater Treatment Plant -
Construction Management 
Request for Proposals

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize staff to solicit proposals from Construction Management companies to support City staff during
construction of the new wastewater treatment plant project.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The purpose of this agenda bill is to authorize staff to solicit proposals from Construction Management 
companies to augment the City’s staff during construction of the new wastewater treatment plant.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 6.d
Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: Wastewater Treatment Plant -
Construction Management 
Request for Proposals

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize staff to solicit proposals from Construction Management companies to support City staff during 
construction of the new wastewater treatment plant project.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The purpose of this agenda bill is to authorize staff to solicit proposals from Construction Management 
companies to augment the City’s staff during construction of the new wastewater treatment plant.companies to augment the City’s staff during construction of the new wastewater treatment plant.

The City of Oak Harbor is preparing for construction of the new wastewater treatment plant.  In order 
for the City to properly manage the project, additional staff is needed to support our efforts.  The 
attached Request for Proposals (RFP) is intended to solicit proposals from engineering and construction
management firms capable of providing the services necessary to properly staff the City’s interest in the 
construction project.

Selection of construction management support services will consist of soliciting proposals from qualified 
firms registered with the Municipal Research Services and Consulting (MRSC) roster, interviewing the 
most qualified consultants and negotiating a scope of services.

The expected schedule is as follows:

 March – solicit RFPs
 March 31 through April 3 – review proposals
 April 7 through April 10 – interview applicants
 May 5 – consider award of CM contract

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

companies to augment the City’s staff during construction of the new wastewater treatment plant.

The City of Oak Harbor is preparing for construction of the new wastewater treatment plant.  In order 
for the City to properly manage the project, additional staff is needed to support our efforts.  The 
attached Request for Proposals (RFP) is intended to solicit proposals from engineering and construction 
management firms capable of providing the services necessary to properly staff the City’s interest in the 
construction project.

Selection of construction management support services will consist of soliciting proposals from qualified 
firms registered with the Municipal Research Services and Consulting (MRSC) roster, interviewing the 
most qualified consultants and negotiating a scope of services.

The expected schedule is as follows:

 March – solicit RFPs
 March 31 through April 3 – review proposals
 April 7 through April 10 – interview applicants
 May 5 – consider award of CM contract

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

37



FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This topic was discussed at the January 28, 2015 City Council Workshop.

There have been no previous City Council actions on this item.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Request for Proposals

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This topic was discussed at the January 28, 2015 City Council Workshop.

There have been no previous City Council actions on this item.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Request for Proposals

38

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424981618_at.pdf


 
 

 
 

Request for Proposals 
Construction Manager Consultant 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Clean Water Facility 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Oak Harbor, Public Works Department, Engineering Division 
March 3, 2015 

 

39



1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 

The City of Oak Harbor, Washington (City) is accepting proposals from qualified Project 
and Construction Management Consulting firms to: 

• To provide highly qualified and experience project and construction 
management personnel to support and augment City staff in overall 
management including team leadership, financial tracking, scheduling, 
quality assurance and other duties. 

• Support an integrated delivery model together with the City staff, Carollo 
Engineers, Hoffman Construction, OAC Services and other vendors to 
maximize project value to rate payers and others.  The project is using 
the Heavy Civil GC/CM delivery method. 

• Assist the City managers in determining the best overall value of self-
performed work by the GC/CM (if any) under RCW 39.10 for Heavy Civil 
projects. 

The CITY’s overall project team includes Carollo Engineers as the Engineer of Record, 
Hoffman Construction as the Heavy Civil GC/CM, OAC Services as GC/CM Consultant, 
as well as specialty consultants for geotechnical engineering, surveying, archeology, 
materials testing and other disciplines.  

 

Proposal submittal deadline: 

March 26, 2015, 4:30 p.m. Pacific Time 

 Please submit four (4) copies of the RFP to: 

 
The City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 
Attention: Joe Stowell, City Engineer 

 

Questions may be directed to Joe Stowell, via email to:  jstowell@oakharbor.org. 
 

 

2.0 PROJECT DESCRIPTION  
 

The Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility will replace two aging wastewater treatment 
facilities with a new plant that meets modern standards for capacity, reliability and 
performance. The new facility will provide continued reliable wastewater service to the 
community while protecting and preserving the surrounding environment. 
 

40



The City’s wastewater system currently consists of two facilities: a rotating biological 
contactor (RBC) facility near Windjammer Park (RBC Plant), and a Lagoon Plant on the 
U.S. Navy Seaplane Base. Multiple alternatives were evaluated over a 2 year period to 
identify the best alternative to replace these facilities. The selected alternative consists 
of a new membrane bioreactor (MBR) treatment facility located in the vicinity of 
Windjammer Park, near the City’s existing RBC plant. The Project will be completed in 
phases to accommodate existing and future flows and loads. Portions of the existing 
RBC plant must be kept in service throughout construction. The site is complex for a 
number of reasons, including: 1) challenging geotechnical conditions; 2) location relative 
to the 100-year flood plain; 3) adjacency to well-used public spaces; 4) potential for 
cultural resources to be discovered during construction; and 5) adjacency to existing 
commercial and other heavy traffic areas. 
 
The treatment capacity of the initial phase of the Project is expected to be 2.7 million 
gallons per day (mgd). The project will include the following components: 

• A new headworks (pumping and primary treatment) facility; 

• Secondary treatment using the MBR treatment process; 

• Disinfection with ultraviolet (UV) light; 

• Solids treatment to Class A quality; 

• Electrical service and primary/secondary distribution; 

• Outfall structures; 

• Odor control; 

• Associated non-process facilities (laboratory, administration, maintenance, etc,); 

• Additional amenities/features selected by the City to allow the facility to fit within 
the surrounding environment. 

Additional information about the project can be found at 
http://www.oakharborcleanwater.org/. 

 

3.0 PROJECT SCHEDULE 

Design 

• 60% Design Submittal: May, 2015 
• 90% Design Submittal: September, 2015 
• Final Design:  December, 2015 

Construction 

• May 2015:   Early Sitework and Excavation 
• June 2015:  Outfall Construction 
• Dec 2015 – Dec 2017: Treatment Plan Construction 
• Jan 2018 – Jan 2019: Site Restoration and Mitigation Projects 

41

http://www.oakharborcleanwater.org/


 

4.0  BUDGET 

The final scope of work and associated budget line for construction activities is 
expected to be finalized in the pre-construction phase of the project.  The most 
current projected project budget is as follows:   

Treatment Plant Construction (Site Preparation & Facilities) $70,032,930 
Outfall Construction 3,255,643 
Property Acquisition 5,406,588 
Professional Services, GC/CM, Legal, and Administration 16,168,573 
Total $94,863,734 
 

Potential CM consultants should be aware that the final project budget figures are 
currently under review and are likely subject to significant variations in the total 
project cost 

 
 

5.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES: 
The successful CM consultant will provide specific project staff with proven 
qualifications and experience on similar projects to advise and assist the City in 
overall project management services in close coordination and cooperation with 
existing City Staff and current project team members.  The City intends to interview 
and select staff members from the CM’s proposed staff. 

Services will include: 

 Assist the City in coordination and administration of project planning, design, and 
construction.   

 Provide oversight of the permitting and entitlements process responsibilities. 

 Assist with financial management including control of costs to maximum value 
received within available project funding. 

 Assist the City and Hoffman in overseeing the Master Project Schedule, including 
a plan for commissioning, start up, training and turnover. 

 Prepare and coordinate preparation of periodic progress and financial information 
reports required by the City. 

 Assist in  communication with staff, community, and news media to enhance 
understanding and support for the project as necessary 

 Assist the City in occupancy and warranty planning 

 
6.0 PERSONNEL TO BE PROVIDED: 

The successful CM consultant will meet with City staff to finalize expected staffing to 
be provided by the consultant, roles and responsibilities and integration with City 
staff.  The on-site personnel listed below are expected to be fully dedicated to the 
project—on site personnel shall have no other client obligations during the course of 
this project.  Contingent personnel listed below shall be used on an as needed basis 
and may be located at the consultant’s office or the project site. 

42



 

 

On-Site Personnel: 
Resident Engineer (RE).  This individual shall demonstrate a successful 
track record leading the delivery of waste water treatment plants, working 
collaboratively with designer and contractors, and overseeing smooth hand 
off to plant operations.  The RE will support City staff in the overall leadership 
of the project, This role is expected to be full time beginning at contract 
signing through the construction completion, start up and successful 
commissioning.  The RE is expected to live within commuting distance of the 
project site.  

Quality Assurance Manager/Inspector (QA).  This individual shall 
demonstrate a successful track record of overseeing the overall quality 
delivery on federally funded projects of similar size and complexity.  The QA 
will provide overall coordination and oversight of the quality effort including 
procuring and scheduling specialty inspectors, coordinating with Hoffman’s 
QC Manager and Carollo’s staff. This role is expected to be full time 
beginning prior to ground breaking and continue through the construction 
completion, start up and successful commissioning.  The Project Manager is 
expected to live within commuting distance of the project site.  

Administrative Specialist.  This individual shall support the RE and other 
consultant and City staff with meeting coordination, document control, public 
relations and other duties as assigned. The Administrative Specialist is 
expected to live within commuting distance of the project site. 

 

Contingent Staffing: 

Project Controls Specialist.  This individual or team of specialist shall 
provide project document control, project work flow coordination, financial 
tracking, forecasting and reporting and other tasks.  Subject to negotiation, 
this role may be fulfilled at the consultant’s office or the project site. 

Cost Estimating Specialist.  This individual or team of specialist shall 
provide cost estimating and cost validation as needed throughout the project.  
The cost estimator must be familiar with treatment plant facilities.  This roll 
may be fulfilled at the consultant’s office. 

 

 

7.0  SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
Proposers are encouraged to provide a proposal that demonstrates its understanding 
of the Clean Water Project, its staff qualifications and experience on similar work and 
its availability to serve.  Selection of the consultant will rest heavily on the 
qualifications, skills and availability of key staff members as well as the compatibility 
with other project members.  An understanding of collaborative project delivery and 
the GCCM delivery method is critical. 

43



 Proposers are encouraged to provide concise information organized for easy review 
by City staff and consultants.   

 

 Section 1.  Letter of Interest 
 Provide a letter interest of the firm in this project. 

 

 Section 2.  Firm Profile 
 Provide an overall firm profile outlining the history, primary markets, services, 

clients, staff size and expertise.  Profile your firm’s leadership and how they 
will support the City. 

 

Section 3.  Relevant Experience 
Provide project or service profiles highlighting similar work. Include the scope 
of services provided, years construction, staff personnel assigned to the 
project, and how this is relevant to the Clean Water Project.  Highlight 
experience with GCCM delivery and your role in procurement, negotiations 
and delivery. 

 

Section 4.  Proposed Staff 
Provide detailed resumes for all proposed staff including employment history, 
project experience, and roles on each project, years in the industry and years 
with your firm.  Provide an explanation of your proposed role for each 
individual.  For the On-Site Staff listed above confirm their availability and 
their ability to be within daily commuting distance to Oak Harbor.   

 

Section 5.  Proposed Approach 
Describe how you propose to assist the City in organizing the overall 
management effort, organizing an integrated City/Consultant team for the 
project.  How will you and your staff integrate with the ongoing design and 
planning efforts to ensure successful delivery?  Provide a recommended 
organizational chart to describe your recommendations.  

 
Section 6.  References 

Provide at least three client references for each proposed staff member. 
 

 

7.1       Submittal Delivery 

Submittals shall be delivered to: 

The City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 

44



Oak Harbor, WA 98277 
Attention: Joe Stowell, City Engineer 
 

In a sealed envelope or box clearly marked as “Request for Proposals, CM 
Services, Clean Water Facility” by the date and time listed above. 

7.2       Late Submittals 

Submittals, modifications of submittals, received at the office designated in the 
solicitation after the exact hour and date specified for receipt will not be 
accepted. 

7.3 Cancellation of Request for Proposals or Postponement of Submittal Due 
Date and Time 

The City reserves the right to cancel this RFP at any time.  The City may change 
the date and time for receiving submittals prior to the date and time established 
for submittal. 

Questions will be encouraged during the pre-submittal conference also. 

7.4       Cost of Submittals  

Respondents are responsible for all costs of competition. 

7.5       Collusion or Improper Contact 

Contact with the City staff, Selection Committee members, Carollo Engineers, 
Hoffman Construction or OAC Services regarding this RFP is or collusion of any 
kind strictly prohibited.  Respondents violating this prohibition will be disqualified 
from competition.  

9.7 Public Disclosure of Submittals 

Submittals received by the City in response to this RFP become public records 
and are subject to Chapter 42.56 RCW, the Public Records Act.  The 
Respondent should clearly identify in its submittal any specific information that it 
claims to be confidential or proprietary.  After a decision to award the contract 
has been made, the submittals shall be available for inspection and copying by 
the public.  If the City receives a Public Records Act request to view the 
information so marked in the Respondent’s submittal following an award, its sole 
obligations shall be to notify the Respondent (1) of the request and (2) of the date 
that such information will be released to the requester unless the Respondent 
obtains a court order to enjoin that disclosure pursuant to RCW 42.56.540.  If the 
Respondent fails to timely obtain a court order enjoining disclosure, the City will 
release the requested information on the date specified. 

7.6       Non-Closure Obligation 

Any data provided by the City either before or after Contract award shall only be 
used for its intended purpose. Contractors and Subcontractors shall not utilize 

45



nor distribute the City data in any form without the express written approval of the 
the City. 

7.7       Submittal Signature 

Each submittal shall include a completed submittal  response form, the first page 
of this document, signed by an authorized representative of the Respondent. 

7.8       Addenda 
If at any time, the City changes, revises, deletes, clarifies, increases, or 
otherwise modifies the RFP, the City will issue a written Addendum to the RFP.  
Proposers must register on the County’s website for this RFP to be notified of 
addendum and new documents on this RFP.  It is the Proposer’s responsibility to 
check for addenda and other new documents on-line. 

7.9       Questions and Interpretation of the RFP 

No oral interpretations of the RFP will be made to any Responder. All questions 
and any explanations must be requested in writing and directed to the City no 
later than date specific in Section or as extended per addendum.  Oral 
explanations or instructions are not binding. Any information modifying a 
solicitation will be furnished to all Responders by addendum. Communications 
concerning this RFP with other than the listed Buyer or Purchasing staff may 
cause the Responder to be disqualified. 

All questions regarding this procurement must be submitted via email to: 

Joe Stowell, P.E. 
City Engineer 
City of Oak Harbor 
jstowell@oakharbor.org 

 

8.0  CONSULTANT SELECTION PROCESS 
The City shall review all valid submittals against the submittal requirements listed 
above and may hold interviews with proposes at the City’s sole discretion.  The most 
highly qualified firm(s) will be engaged in negotiations to refine service and fees. 

 

9.0  COMPENSATION AND CONTRACTING 
Compensation for services provided is expected to be based on negotiated hourly 
rates and a not-to-exceed contract.  A professional services agreement in a form 
provided by the City shall be negotiated with the successful proposer.  The City 
reserves the right to negotiate with more than one proposer and select personnel 
from more than one firm if deemed to be in the City’s best interest.   

 

46

mailto:jstowell@oakharbor.org


 

 

 

47



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: Authorization to bid-One (1) 
Front Load Refuse Truck

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing staff to proceed with advertisement to bid for one (1) front load refuse trucks. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Proposed in the 2015-2016 biennial budget includes funds for the replacement of one front load refuse 
truck used for commercial pick up.  It was purchased in 2008 and has been in use nearly every business
day since we received it and it has an expected seven year life cycle.  

Past practice has been to cycle the refuse trucks out every seven years.  Staff has determined that seven

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 6.e
Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: Authorization to bid-One (1) 
Front Load Refuse Truck

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing staff to proceed with advertisement to bid for one (1) front load refuse trucks. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Proposed in the 2015-2016 biennial budget includes funds for the replacement of one front load refuse 
truck used for commercial pick up.  It was purchased in 2008 and has been in use nearly every business 
day since we received it and it has an expected seven year life cycle.  

Past practice has been to cycle the refuse trucks out every seven years.  Staff has determined that sevenPast practice has been to cycle the refuse trucks out every seven years.  Staff has determined that seven
years is ideal to get the most value out of the refuse truck and to limit the extreme repair and maintenance 
costs associated with heavy wear and tear on the refuse body specifically.  In addition to the standard age 
criteria, staff looked at criteria’s which include usage (hours or mileage), type of service, reliability, 
condition and repair costs.  The ability to quantify replacement decisions is vital to our replacement 
program and by using all six criteria mentioned above; staff determined that these replacements are 
justified.

The bid specifications will include the trade-in of this vehicle and will call for a Currotto can attachment 
that allows staff to turn a front load refuse truck into a side arm refuse truck as an emergency backup.  
The City’s current Currotto can attachment is worn out and is in need of replacement as well.

Funds have been set aside in the Equipment Rental replacement fund to replace the front load refuse 
truck with the Currotto can attachment.

Pending Council authorization City staff is ready to pursue competitive bidding for these acquisitions.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

Past practice has been to cycle the refuse trucks out every seven years.  Staff has determined that seven 
years is ideal to get the most value out of the refuse truck and to limit the extreme repair and maintenance 
costs associated with heavy wear and tear on the refuse body specifically.  In addition to the standard age 
criteria, staff looked at criteria’s which include usage (hours or mileage), type of service, reliability, 
condition and repair costs.  The ability to quantify replacement decisions is vital to our replacement 
program and by using all six criteria mentioned above; staff determined that these replacements are 
justified.

The bid specifications will include the trade-in of this vehicle and will call for a Currotto can attachment 
that allows staff to turn a front load refuse truck into a side arm refuse truck as an emergency backup.  
The City’s current Currotto can attachment is worn out and is in need of replacement as well.

Funds have been set aside in the Equipment Rental replacement fund to replace the front load refuse 
truck with the Currotto can attachment.

Pending Council authorization City staff is ready to pursue competitive bidding for these acquisitions.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

48



FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:         Not to exceed $2,000.00

Appropriation Source:             Solid Waste Fund

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was reviewed at the City Council workshop on February 25, 2015.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Criteria Master Sheet #61

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:         Not to exceed $2,000.00

Appropriation Source:             Solid Waste Fund

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was reviewed at the City Council workshop on February 25, 2015.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Criteria Master Sheet #61

49

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424722046_at.pdf


50



51



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: For Hire (Taxi) License 
Application for All Island 
Express Taxi, LLC

FROM: Teri Gardner, Deputy Police Chief/ Captain

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the application for taxi license – All Island Express Taxi, LLC.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Mr. Rosengren operates All Island Express Taxi, LLC on the south end of Whidbey Island.  He 
submitted a Background check application in order to begin the Taxi Application process to be licensed 
in the City of Oak Harbor in December of 2014.  

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 6.f
Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: For Hire (Taxi) License 
Application for All Island 
Express Taxi, LLC

FROM: Teri Gardner, Deputy Police Chief/ Captain

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the application for taxi license – All Island Express Taxi, LLC.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Mr. Rosengren operates All Island Express Taxi, LLC on the south end of Whidbey Island.  He 
submitted a Background check application in order to begin the Taxi Application process to be licensed 
in the City of Oak Harbor in December of 2014.  in the City of Oak Harbor in December of 2014.  

The Background check was approved, with the condition that he obtain a 'For Hire Certificate' from 
Washington State Department of Licensing (DOL).  Chief Green and the City Clerk have been in contact
with a representative of the DOL, Derek Goudriaan, to ensure Mr. Rosengren obtained all necessary 
forms in order to be in compliance with State Law.  See correspondence attached in Attachment 1 for 
reference.

On February 20, 2015, the DOL emailed the Clerk a copy of the 'For Hire Certificate' which fulfilled the 
conditions for Mr. Ronsengren's Background check approval per Chief Green. 

Note that additional drivers listed on Mr. Rosengren's application will apply for background checks if 
Council approves this Taxi License Application. 

Mr. Rosengren has provided all necessary documentation in order to become properly licensed by the 
State and City of Oak Harbor, which includes:

- Approved Background Check.

- Washington State For Hire Certificate.

- Certificate of Liability Insurance.

- For Hire Addendum.

in the City of Oak Harbor in December of 2014.  

The Background check was approved, with the condition that he obtain a 'For Hire Certificate' from 
Washington State Department of Licensing (DOL).  Chief Green and the City Clerk have been in contact 
with a representative of the DOL, Derek Goudriaan, to ensure Mr. Rosengren obtained all necessary 
forms in order to be in compliance with State Law.  See correspondence attached in Attachment 1 for 
reference.

On February 20, 2015, the DOL emailed the Clerk a copy of the 'For Hire Certificate' which fulfilled the 
conditions for Mr. Ronsengren's Background check approval per Chief Green. 

Note that additional drivers listed on Mr. Rosengren's application will apply for background checks if 
Council approves this Taxi License Application. 

Mr. Rosengren has provided all necessary documentation in order to become properly licensed by the 
State and City of Oak Harbor, which includes:

- Approved Background Check.

- Washington State For Hire Certificate.

- Certificate of Liability Insurance.

- For Hire Addendum.

52



- For Hire Addendum.

- Completed Business License Application and Taxi License Application.

- Council Approval needed.

If Council Approves the Taxi Application, Mr. Rosengren will be issued a City Business License and For 
Hire (Taxi) License. 

With respect to OHMC 5.30.070(4), the City currently has two operating taxi companies:  Ault Field 
Taxi and Whidbey Taxi.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 46.72 and RCW 81.72 as well as agency rules WAC 308-89 provide the basis for regulation of
For Hire (Taxi) Businesses.  These laws provide local jurisdictions with the authority to regulate For Hire
(Taxi) businesses within their jurisdiction.   In order to comply with State Law, Taxi Applicants in our 
City must obtain a Washington State For Hire Vehicle Certificate.  This ensures that the business has and 
maintains valid insurance coverage.  In addition, the Applicant must obtain an Oak Harbor Business 
License and For Hire (Taxi) License to comply with Oak Harbor Municipal Code (OHMC), Chapter 
5.30 For Hire Vehicles.

The process by which an applicant receives our Business License and For Hire (Taxi) License is as 
follows:

-          Receive Background check approval from OHPD

-          Obtain Washington State 'For Hire Vehicle Certificate'

- For Hire Addendum.

- Completed Business License Application and Taxi License Application.

- Council Approval needed.

If Council Approves the Taxi Application, Mr. Rosengren will be issued a City Business License and For 
Hire (Taxi) License. 

With respect to OHMC 5.30.070(4), the City currently has two operating taxi companies:  Ault Field 
Taxi and Whidbey Taxi.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 46.72 and RCW 81.72 as well as agency rules WAC 308-89 provide the basis for regulation of 
For Hire (Taxi) Businesses.  These laws provide local jurisdictions with the authority to regulate For Hire 
(Taxi) businesses within their jurisdiction.   In order to comply with State Law, Taxi Applicants in our 
City must obtain a Washington State For Hire Vehicle Certificate.  This ensures that the business has and 
maintains valid insurance coverage.  In addition, the Applicant must obtain an Oak Harbor Business 
License and For Hire (Taxi) License to comply with Oak Harbor Municipal Code (OHMC), Chapter 
5.30 For Hire Vehicles.

The process by which an applicant receives our Business License and For Hire (Taxi) License is as 
follows:

-          Receive Background check approval from OHPD

-          Obtain Washington State 'For Hire Vehicle Certificate'-          Obtain Washington State 'For Hire Vehicle Certificate'

-          Certificate of Liability Insurance

-          Submit 'For Hire Addendum'

-          Submit completed Business License Application and Taxi License Application

-          Receive Council Approval per OHMC 5.30

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
N/A

ATTACHMENTS
1. Taxi License Application
2. Background Application and Correspondence

-          Obtain Washington State 'For Hire Vehicle Certificate'

-          Certificate of Liability Insurance

-          Submit 'For Hire Addendum'

-          Submit completed Business License Application and Taxi License Application

-          Receive Council Approval per OHMC 5.30

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
N/A

ATTACHMENTS
1. Taxi License Application
2. Background Application and Correspondence

53

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424825715_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424463555_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424463605_at.pdf


3. Washington State Department of Licensing For Hire Certificate
4. Certificate of Liability Insurance
5. For Hire Addendum
6. Business License Application

3. Washington State Department of Licensing For Hire Certificate
4. Certificate of Liability Insurance
5. For Hire Addendum
6. Business License Application

54

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424463605_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424463807_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424824621_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424824525_at.pdf


See Rates attached below.  

55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



Note: Print out of Link sent in Email above

65



Note: This is the "For Hire Certificate" 
required from the State. With this 
Certifiacte, the Bakcground Check 
Conditions from OHPD were met.

66



67



68



69



70



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: Whidbey Pedestrian Crossing -
Consultant Request for Proposal

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize staff to issue a Request for Proposal to qualified consulting firms for services 
needed to develop a design and construction documents for the Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The purpose of this agenda bill is to request authorization to issue a Request for Proposal to qualified 
transportation consultants for designing the E Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing.

The segment of E Whidbey Avenue between SR 20 and Oak Harbor Street is the busiest east-west

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 6.g
Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: Whidbey Pedestrian Crossing -
Consultant Request for Proposal

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize staff to issue a Request for Proposal to qualified consulting firms for services 
needed to develop a design and construction documents for the Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The purpose of this agenda bill is to request authorization to issue a Request for Proposal to qualified 
transportation consultants for designing the E Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing.

The segment of E Whidbey Avenue between SR 20 and Oak Harbor Street is the busiest east-westThe segment of E Whidbey Avenue between SR 20 and Oak Harbor Street is the busiest east-west 
arterial street in Oak Harbor, carrying an average of 10,200 vehicles per day. The street segment is five 
lanes wide and is situated between a large multi-family neighborhood on the north side and a shopping 
center and transit stop on the south. This has resulted in chronic mid-block jay-walking by pedestrians 
traveling between their homes and the commercial areas and a transit stop on the opposite side of the 
street.

The Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing project is intended to provide a safe and convenient place for 
pedestrians to cross E Whidbey Avenue. The conceptual plan includes a pedestrian refuge island in the 
center of the street, a pedestrian-activated warning system and adjacent curb ramps. All of the facilities 
will be built in conformance with the American’s with Disabilities Act.

The City of Oak Harbor was awarded $224,500 from the Transportation Alternative Program for 
designing and constructing the Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing.

Designing the crossing requires specialized knowledge of pedestrian facilities and engineering staff does 
not have the time necessary to design the crossing and develop the construction and supporting 
documents for the project. Upon Council authorization, a Request for Proposal will be forwarded to 
three qualified consultant firms selected from the Municipal Research and Services Center (MRSC) 
consultant roster. Responding firms will submit written proposals which will be evaluated by staff. A City

The segment of E Whidbey Avenue between SR 20 and Oak Harbor Street is the busiest east-west 
arterial street in Oak Harbor, carrying an average of 10,200 vehicles per day. The street segment is five 
lanes wide and is situated between a large multi-family neighborhood on the north side and a shopping 
center and transit stop on the south. This has resulted in chronic mid-block jay-walking by pedestrians 
traveling between their homes and the commercial areas and a transit stop on the opposite side of the 
street.

The Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing project is intended to provide a safe and convenient place for 
pedestrians to cross E Whidbey Avenue. The conceptual plan includes a pedestrian refuge island in the 
center of the street, a pedestrian-activated warning system and adjacent curb ramps. All of the facilities 
will be built in conformance with the American’s with Disabilities Act.

The City of Oak Harbor was awarded $224,500 from the Transportation Alternative Program for 
designing and constructing the Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing.

Designing the crossing requires specialized knowledge of pedestrian facilities and engineering staff does 
not have the time necessary to design the crossing and develop the construction and supporting 
documents for the project. Upon Council authorization, a Request for Proposal will be forwarded to 
three qualified consultant firms selected from the Municipal Research and Services Center (MRSC) 
consultant roster. Responding firms will submit written proposals which will be evaluated by staff. A City 

71



interview panel will be formed and the responding consultants will each present their proposals in person. 
The interview panel will then select the consultant firm deemed most qualified for the project. Staff will 
begin negotiations with the selected firm to establish a scope of services and fee for the project.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item has not been presented at a workshop.

August 6, 2014 – City Council passed a motion to seek an opinion letter from a licensed traffic engineer 
confirming that this is or is not a recommend location for crossing prior to expending any engineering 
funds for a traffic study or design.

August 6, 2014 – City Council passed a motion to postpone taking action on adopting on Resolution 14
31 until after receiving the opinion letter.

October 14, 2014 - City Council adopted Resolution 14-31 accepting the terms of the Washington State 
Department of Transportation Local Agency Agreement for utilizing federal funds for design and 
construction of the Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing.

ATTACHMENTS
1. 2015 City of Oak Harbor Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing

interview panel will be formed and the responding consultants will each present their proposals in person. 
The interview panel will then select the consultant firm deemed most qualified for the project. Staff will 
begin negotiations with the selected firm to establish a scope of services and fee for the project.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item has not been presented at a workshop.

August 6, 2014 – City Council passed a motion to seek an opinion letter from a licensed traffic engineer 
confirming that this is or is not a recommend location for crossing prior to expending any engineering 
funds for a traffic study or design.

August 6, 2014 – City Council passed a motion to postpone taking action on adopting on Resolution 14-
31 until after receiving the opinion letter.

October 14, 2014 - City Council adopted Resolution 14-31 accepting the terms of the Washington State 
Department of Transportation Local Agency Agreement for utilizing federal funds for design and 
construction of the Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing.

ATTACHMENTS
1. 2015 City of Oak Harbor Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing1. 2015 City of Oak Harbor Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing1. 2015 City of Oak Harbor Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing

72

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424734055_at.pdf


73



74



75



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: Waterfront Trail Repair -
Consultant Request for Proposal

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize staff to issue a Request for Proposal to qualified consulting firms for services 
needed to develop a design and construction documents for the Waterfront Trail Repair.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The purpose of this agenda bill is to request authorization to issue a Request for Proposal to qualified 
consultants for designing the Waterfront Trail Repair.

The Oak Harbor Waterfront Trail is a pedestrian and recreational facility that spans the entire City

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 6.h
Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: Waterfront Trail Repair -
Consultant Request for Proposal

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize staff to issue a Request for Proposal to qualified consulting firms for services 
needed to develop a design and construction documents for the Waterfront Trail Repair.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The purpose of this agenda bill is to request authorization to issue a Request for Proposal to qualified 
consultants for designing the Waterfront Trail Repair.

The Oak Harbor Waterfront Trail is a pedestrian and recreational facility that spans the entire CityThe Oak Harbor Waterfront Trail is a pedestrian and recreational facility that spans the entire City 
waterfront. Most of the trail is paved with asphalt or concrete pavement. The Waterfront Trail Repair 
project is in Veteran’s Park on the south side of E Pioneer Way immediately east of the intersection with
Regatta Drive. The trail at the project site is cement concrete eight feet wide. The existing trail at the 
project site was undermined by a landslide in February 2013 and has been closed since. The trail on 
either side of the slide is in good condition. The work includes relocation and reconstruction of the cement
concrete trail and safety railing at a safe distance from the slide and bluff, landscaping, soil stabilization 
and installation of amenities to create a scenic overlook area.

The City of Oak Harbor was awarded $150,000 from the Federal Transportation Alternative Program 
for designing and constructing this project.

Staff does not have the time necessary to design the repair and develop the construction and supporting
documents for the project. Upon Council authorization, a Request for Proposal will be forwarded to 
three qualified consultant firms selected from the Municipal Research and Services Center (MRSC) 
consultant roster. Responding firms will submit written proposals which will be evaluated by staff. A City
interview panel will be formed and the responding consultants will each present their proposals in person. 
The interview panel will then select the consultant firm deemed most qualified for the project. Staff will 
begin negotiations with the selected firm to establish a scope of services and fee for the project.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

The Oak Harbor Waterfront Trail is a pedestrian and recreational facility that spans the entire City 
waterfront. Most of the trail is paved with asphalt or concrete pavement. The Waterfront Trail Repair 
project is in Veteran’s Park on the south side of E Pioneer Way immediately east of the intersection with 
Regatta Drive. The trail at the project site is cement concrete eight feet wide. The existing trail at the 
project site was undermined by a landslide in February 2013 and has been closed since. The trail on 
either side of the slide is in good condition. The work includes relocation and reconstruction of the cement 
concrete trail and safety railing at a safe distance from the slide and bluff, landscaping, soil stabilization 
and installation of amenities to create a scenic overlook area.

The City of Oak Harbor was awarded $150,000 from the Federal Transportation Alternative Program 
for designing and constructing this project.

Staff does not have the time necessary to design the repair and develop the construction and supporting 
documents for the project. Upon Council authorization, a Request for Proposal will be forwarded to 
three qualified consultant firms selected from the Municipal Research and Services Center (MRSC) 
consultant roster. Responding firms will submit written proposals which will be evaluated by staff. A City 
interview panel will be formed and the responding consultants will each present their proposals in person. 
The interview panel will then select the consultant firm deemed most qualified for the project. Staff will 
begin negotiations with the selected firm to establish a scope of services and fee for the project.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

76



LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item has not been presented at a workshop.

August 6, 2014 City Council adopted Resolution 14-30 accepting the terms of the Washington State 
Department of Transportation Local Agency Agreement for utilizing federal funds for design and 
construction of the Waterfront Trail Repair.

ATTACHMENTS
1. 2015 City of Oak Harbor Waterfront Trail Repair

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item has not been presented at a workshop.

August 6, 2014 City Council adopted Resolution 14-30 accepting the terms of the Washington State 
Department of Transportation Local Agency Agreement for utilizing federal funds for design and 
construction of the Waterfront Trail Repair.

ATTACHMENTS
1. 2015 City of Oak Harbor Waterfront Trail Repair

77

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424733169_at.pdf


78



79



80



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: Authorization to sign CWSRF 
Funding Agreements with 
Department of Ecology

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign Department of Ecology State Revolving Fund Agreements WQC-2015-
OakHar-00021 and WQC-2015-OakHar-00110.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
In 2014, the City of Oak Harbor filed for two applications for 2015 Clean Water State Revolving Fund 
(CWSRF) financing through the Water Quality Combined Financial Assistance Program for funding of 
the new Wastewater Treatment Plant.  As a result, the City has been awarded advantageous funding for 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 6.i
Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: Authorization to sign CWSRF 
Funding Agreements with 
Department of Ecology

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign Department of Ecology State Revolving Fund Agreements WQC-2015-
OakHar-00021 and WQC-2015-OakHar-00110.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
In 2014, the City of Oak Harbor filed for two applications for 2015 Clean Water State Revolving Fund 
(CWSRF) financing through the Water Quality Combined Financial Assistance Program for funding of 
the new Wastewater Treatment Plant.  As a result, the City has been awarded advantageous funding for the new Wastewater Treatment Plant.  As a result, the City has been awarded advantageous funding for 
the following:

1) The design of a new membrane bioreactor (MBR) facility that will replace the existing lagoon RBC
facilities.  The amount of the loan is $8,260,000, with interest rates of 2.7%, for a term of 20 years.

2) The design and construction of the replacement outfall for the wastewater treatment plant.  The amount
of the loan is $3,200,000, with interest rate of 2.7%, for a term of 20 years.

The loans are to be secured by the revenues of the City of Oak Harbor Wastewater system.  Loan 
principal is disbursed on a reimbursement basis for qualified expenditures.  The originating funding source 
for the CWSRF program come from federal sources.  Accordingly, the City must comply with federal 
standards as outlined in the loan agreements.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Under RCW 35A.11.020, The legislative body of each code city shall have power to organize and 
regulate its internal affairs within the provisions of this title and its charter, if any; and to define the 
functions, powers, and duties of its officers and employees; 

FISCAL IMPACT

the new Wastewater Treatment Plant.  As a result, the City has been awarded advantageous funding for 
the following:

1) The design of a new membrane bioreactor (MBR) facility that will replace the existing lagoon RBC
facilities.  The amount of the loan is $8,260,000, with interest rates of 2.7%, for a term of 20 years.

2) The design and construction of the replacement outfall for the wastewater treatment plant.  The amount 
of the loan is $3,200,000, with interest rate of 2.7%, for a term of 20 years.

The loans are to be secured by the revenues of the City of Oak Harbor Wastewater system.  Loan 
principal is disbursed on a reimbursement basis for qualified expenditures.  The originating funding source 
for the CWSRF program come from federal sources.  Accordingly, the City must comply with federal 
standards as outlined in the loan agreements.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Under RCW 35A.11.020, The legislative body of each code city shall have power to organize and 
regulate its internal affairs within the provisions of this title and its charter, if any; and to define the 
functions, powers, and duties of its officers and employees; 

FISCAL IMPACT

81



This fiscal impact of accepting the indebtedness of the two CWSRF loans is a commitment to a debt 
future debt service payment of approximately $750,000 per annum.  The debt service payment will be 
funded via user rates.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
City Council previously authorized staff to prepare, and the Mayor to sign, the two applications for 2015 
funding at its December 3, 2013 regular meeting.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Department of Ecology Revolving Fund Agreement - WQC-2015-OakHar-00021
2. Department of Ecology Revolving Fund Agreement - WQC-2015-OakHar-00110

This fiscal impact of accepting the indebtedness of the two CWSRF loans is a commitment to a debt 
future debt service payment of approximately $750,000 per annum.  The debt service payment will be 
funded via user rates.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
City Council previously authorized staff to prepare, and the Mayor to sign, the two applications for 2015 
funding at its December 3, 2013 regular meeting.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Department of Ecology Revolving Fund Agreement - WQC-2015-OakHar-00021
2. Department of Ecology Revolving Fund Agreement - WQC-2015-OakHar-00110

82

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424988313_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424988399_at.pdf


83



84



85



86



Scott Dudley

Mayor

87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



Scott Dudley

Mayor

124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-01: Fairway Point 
Final Plat, Division 3

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Final Plat of Fairway Point PRD Phase 3, Division 2 Resolution No. 15-01

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The initial Fairway Point Planned Residential Development (PRD), consisting of 140 lots in three divisions 
(including Phase 3, Division 2), was approved in 2004.  The approved PRD plans are attached to this 
report for reference.  Division 4 was added to the PRD in 2007.  Its approval added 40 lots to the 
project, for a total of 180 lots.  Over the years, the developer has constructed the project in phases and 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.a
Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: Resolution 15-01: Fairway Point 
Final Plat, Division 3

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Final Plat of Fairway Point PRD Phase 3, Division 2 Resolution No. 15-01

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The initial Fairway Point Planned Residential Development (PRD), consisting of 140 lots in three divisions 
(including Phase 3, Division 2), was approved in 2004.  The approved PRD plans are attached to this 
report for reference.  Division 4 was added to the PRD in 2007.  Its approval added 40 lots to the 
project, for a total of 180 lots.  Over the years, the developer has constructed the project in phases and project, for a total of 180 lots.  Over the years, the developer has constructed the project in phases and 
has recorded final plats for 141 lots.  This final plat proposes to add 26 lots to the development and 
extend SW Fairway Point Drive to connect with Fairway Lane located west of this subdivision. 

Please note the far western-end of this plat was re-designed.  As a consequence the lot layout in this area 
varies slightly from that shown in the PRD.  This deviation is acceptable.

REVIEW AND APPROVAL PROCESS
As was previously noted, the submittal and review requirements for final plats are addressed in OHMC 
Chapter 21.40.  The approval process is specifically found at OHMC 21.40.050, which states:

21.40.050 Review and approval process.

(1) The director shall forward the final plat application to the city council if:

(a) The application is in order; and

(b) Improvements are constructed in a satisfactory manner and approved by the city engineer or a bond 
or other security acceptable to the city engineer has been satisfactorily posted for deferred improvements.

(2) The recommendations of the director regarding the final plat shall be forwarded to the mayor for 
placement upon city council agenda.

(3) After receipt of the recommendation on any final plat, the city council shall consider the final plat at a 

project, for a total of 180 lots.  Over the years, the developer has constructed the project in phases and 
has recorded final plats for 141 lots.  This final plat proposes to add 26 lots to the development and 
extend SW Fairway Point Drive to connect with Fairway Lane located west of this subdivision. 

Please note the far western-end of this plat was re-designed.  As a consequence the lot layout in this area 
varies slightly from that shown in the PRD.  This deviation is acceptable.

REVIEW AND APPROVAL PROCESS
As was previously noted, the submittal and review requirements for final plats are addressed in OHMC 
Chapter 21.40.  The approval process is specifically found at OHMC 21.40.050, which states:

21.40.050 Review and approval process.

(1) The director shall forward the final plat application to the city council if:

(a) The application is in order; and

(b) Improvements are constructed in a satisfactory manner and approved by the city engineer or a bond 
or other security acceptable to the city engineer has been satisfactorily posted for deferred improvements.

(2) The recommendations of the director regarding the final plat shall be forwarded to the mayor for 
placement upon city council agenda.

(3) After receipt of the recommendation on any final plat, the city council shall consider the final plat at a 

159



(3) After receipt of the recommendation on any final plat, the city council shall consider the final plat at a 
public meeting. (Ord. 1568 § 6, 2010

City staff reviewed the application and found it in order as required by OHMC 21.40.050(1)(a).  The 
Public Works Department and the Engineering Division reviewed the final plat map for accuracy and 
conformance with the approved preliminary subdivision and for compliance with the requirements of the 
Subdivision Code (which requires compliance with RCW 58.17) and recommends approval of the final
subdivision plat.  The Planning Division has reviewed and recommends approval of the final subdivision 
plat for conformance with the PRD, preliminary plat, zoning ordinances and other applicable land use 
controls, as well as the conditions and environmental mitigation measures required for the preliminary 
subdivision approval.

The majority of the necessary public improvements were constructed in a satisfactory manner and are 
approved by the City Engineer as required by OHMC 21.40.050(1)(b).  Improvements that are yet to 
be completed have been bonded for by the developer.

State law provides the necessary guidance for the City Council’s review and action once the staff 
recommendation is received.  RCW 58.17.170 states, in part, “When the legislative body of the city, 
town or county finds that the subdivision proposed for final plat approval conforms to all terms of the 
preliminary plat approval, and that said subdivision meets the requirements of this chapter, other 
applicable state laws, and any local ordinances adopted under this chapter which were in effect at the 
time of preliminary plat approval, it shall suitably inscribe and execute its written approval on the face of
the plat.”  The City Council makes its decision in a public meeting.

CONCLUSION
The final plat is in conformance with the requirements of RCW 58.17, OHMC 21.40, the approved 

(3) After receipt of the recommendation on any final plat, the city council shall consider the final plat at a 
public meeting. (Ord. 1568 § 6, 2010

City staff reviewed the application and found it in order as required by OHMC 21.40.050(1)(a).  The 
Public Works Department and the Engineering Division reviewed the final plat map for accuracy and 
conformance with the approved preliminary subdivision and for compliance with the requirements of the 
Subdivision Code (which requires compliance with RCW 58.17) and recommends approval of the final 
subdivision plat.  The Planning Division has reviewed and recommends approval of the final subdivision 
plat for conformance with the PRD, preliminary plat, zoning ordinances and other applicable land use 
controls, as well as the conditions and environmental mitigation measures required for the preliminary 
subdivision approval.

The majority of the necessary public improvements were constructed in a satisfactory manner and are 
approved by the City Engineer as required by OHMC 21.40.050(1)(b).  Improvements that are yet to 
be completed have been bonded for by the developer.

State law provides the necessary guidance for the City Council’s review and action once the staff 
recommendation is received.  RCW 58.17.170 states, in part, “When the legislative body of the city, 
town or county finds that the subdivision proposed for final plat approval conforms to all terms of the 
preliminary plat approval, and that said subdivision meets the requirements of this chapter, other 
applicable state laws, and any local ordinances adopted under this chapter which were in effect at the 
time of preliminary plat approval, it shall suitably inscribe and execute its written approval on the face of 
the plat.”  The City Council makes its decision in a public meeting.

CONCLUSION
The final plat is in conformance with the requirements of RCW 58.17, OHMC 21.40, the approved The final plat is in conformance with the requirements of RCW 58.17, OHMC 21.40, the approved 
planned residential development and the approved preliminary plat.  Staff has reviewed the application for 
conformance with the appropriate technical requirements and has determined that the proposed final plat
meets the code requirements.  Staff recommends approval of the final plat.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
In general, RCW Chapter 58.17 governs the approval of subdivision plats.  The approval of a final plat is 
specifically addressed in RCW 58.17.160 and 170.  The City’s subdivision regulations are found in 
OHMC Title 21, with final plats addressed in OHMC Chapter 21.40.  Finally, final plats are categorized 
as a Type VI review process under OHMC 18.20.280.  Type VI process does not require a public 
hearing; approval action may be taken in a public meeting.  

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: N/A

Appropriation Source: N/A

There are no immediate fiscal impacts with the approval of the final plat.  The developer was responsible 
for constructing all required infrastructure in accordance with the City’s standards.  Once the plat is 

The final plat is in conformance with the requirements of RCW 58.17, OHMC 21.40, the approved 
planned residential development and the approved preliminary plat.  Staff has reviewed the application for 
conformance with the appropriate technical requirements and has determined that the proposed final plat 
meets the code requirements.  Staff recommends approval of the final plat.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
In general, RCW Chapter 58.17 governs the approval of subdivision plats.  The approval of a final plat is 
specifically addressed in RCW 58.17.160 and 170.  The City’s subdivision regulations are found in 
OHMC Title 21, with final plats addressed in OHMC Chapter 21.40.  Finally, final plats are categorized 
as a Type VI review process under OHMC 18.20.280.  Type VI process does not require a public 
hearing; approval action may be taken in a public meeting.  

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: N/A

Appropriation Source: N/A

There are no immediate fiscal impacts with the approval of the final plat.  The developer was responsible 
for constructing all required infrastructure in accordance with the City’s standards.  Once the plat is 

160



approved and recorded, the City will accept the public infrastructure, rights of way and easements as 
indicated on the face of the plat.  The street and the associated infrastructure will be added to the City’s 
inventory and maintenance schedules. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Fairway Point PRD Plans
2. Final Plat of Fairway Point PRD Phase 3, Division 2
3. Resolution 15-01

approved and recorded, the City will accept the public infrastructure, rights of way and easements as 
indicated on the face of the plat.  The street and the associated infrastructure will be added to the City’s 
inventory and maintenance schedules. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Fairway Point PRD Plans
2. Final Plat of Fairway Point PRD Phase 3, Division 2
3. Resolution 15-01

161

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424806401_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=14248064011_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424806402_at.pdf


162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



RESOLUTION NO. 15-01 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT OF FAIRWAY POINT PRD, PHASE 3 

DIVISION 2 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission on September 28, 2004, held a public hearing after said 

hearing was published on September 11, 2004 in the Whidbey News Times on the Planned 

Residential Development plan and the Preliminary Plat for Fairway Point; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Record of 

Decision of the Planning Commission by reference (subject to certain conditions) and approved 

the Preliminary Plat of Fairway Point on October 19, 2004; and 

WHEREAS, the Final Plant of Fairway Point PRD, Phase 3 Division 2, the last phase of Fairway 

Point Subdivision conforms to all terms of the preliminary plat and meets the requirements of  

OHMC 21.40 Final Plat; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, 

WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

The Final Plat of Fairway Point PRD, Phase 3 Division 2 consisting of 26 single-family 

residential lots, a copy of said plat which is hereto attached and by reference made a part hereof, 

is hereby approved. 

PASSED by the City Council this 3
rd

 day of March, 2015.

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

______________________ 

Scott Dudley, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________________ 

City Attorney 

172



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: 2015 Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment Docket

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1. Conduct the public hearing.
2. Approve Resolution No. 15-03

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Comprehensive Plan Amendment Process begins every year in October with a notice to the 
newspaper soliciting applications for amendments.  The applications normally received through this 
process are requests from property owners to change their current land use designation. 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 9.a
Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: 2015 Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment Docket

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1. Conduct the public hearing.
2. Approve Resolution No. 15-03

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Comprehensive Plan Amendment Process begins every year in October with a notice to the 
newspaper soliciting applications for amendments.  The applications normally received through this 
process are requests from property owners to change their current land use designation. process are requests from property owners to change their current land use designation. 

During the public solicitation process, staff and the Planning Commission also compile amendments to 
consider for the upcoming year based on trending issues or State mandates.  All the amendments are then
compiled and advertised to the public.  This year the draft preliminary docket was advertised in the 
Whidbey News Times on December 20, 2014. This is intended to give the public an opportunity to 
comment on the amendments.

The Planning Commission is required to hold a public hearing to consider the preliminary docket in 
January and forward it to the City Council with a recommendation.  The City Council is required to 

conduct a public hearing on the preliminary docket by March 31st.  The City Council may approve the 
docket as presented or modify the docket.

DISCUSSION

In accordance with OHMC 18.50.050 (3), three types of amendments may be placed on a docket; 
Sponsored, Mandated, and Discretionary.  Most of the items tracking on the current preliminary docket
are “mandated” items with the exception of one sponsored item.  The amendments proposed for 2015 
are listed below:

 2016 Major Update to the Comprehensive Plan – Mandated.

Although strides have been made in many areas of the 2016 Update such as on the topics of Countywide 

process are requests from property owners to change their current land use designation. 

During the public solicitation process, staff and the Planning Commission also compile amendments to 
consider for the upcoming year based on trending issues or State mandates.  All the amendments are then 
compiled and advertised to the public.  This year the draft preliminary docket was advertised in the 
Whidbey News Times on December 20, 2014. This is intended to give the public an opportunity to 
comment on the amendments.

The Planning Commission is required to hold a public hearing to consider the preliminary docket in 
January and forward it to the City Council with a recommendation.  The City Council is required to 

conduct a public hearing on the preliminary docket by March 31st.  The City Council may approve the 
docket as presented or modify the docket.

DISCUSSION

In accordance with OHMC 18.50.050 (3), three types of amendments may be placed on a docket; 
Sponsored, Mandated, and Discretionary.  Most of the items tracking on the current preliminary docket 
are “mandated” items with the exception of one sponsored item.  The amendments proposed for 2015 
are listed below:

 2016 Major Update to the Comprehensive Plan – Mandated.

Although strides have been made in many areas of the 2016 Update such as on the topics of Countywide 

173



Although strides have been made in many areas of the 2016 Update such as on the topics of Countywide 
Planning Policies, buildable lands analysis and population demographics, there is still a significant amount
of work yet to be completed (e.g. land use policies, housing policies and transportation plan update).  
The tentative schedule has the majority of the remaining work being completed in 2015 with final 
adoption by June 30, 2016.

 Capital Improvements Plan annual update - Mandated
 Facility Plan for the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) – Mandated

The facility plan must be adopted as part of the Sewer Comprehensive Plan and the Comprehensive Plan.

 Land Use Map amendment – Sponsored Amendment

Change map designation from Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential for 3 lots on SW 
3rd Avenue (R132034884830, R132034884940, and R132034885060).

OHMC 18.15.070 establishes the criteria to review the Comprehensive Plan Amendment Docket.  
Attachment 1 provides the applicability of the criteria to the proposed preliminary docket items.

The items on the proposed preliminary docket meet the established criteria in OHMC 18.15.070.  
Except for the sponsored amendment, the items on this year’s preliminary docket are mandated by the 
State or by local plans.  The Planning Commission held a hearing and discussed the preliminary docket at
their January 27, 2015 meeting.  There were no public comments received on the proposed docket.  At
the conclusion of the public hearing the Planning Commission unanimously recommended the City Council
approve the proposed docket as presented.

Although strides have been made in many areas of the 2016 Update such as on the topics of Countywide 
Planning Policies, buildable lands analysis and population demographics, there is still a significant amount 
of work yet to be completed (e.g. land use policies, housing policies and transportation plan update).  
The tentative schedule has the majority of the remaining work being completed in 2015 with final 
adoption by June 30, 2016.

 Capital Improvements Plan annual update - Mandated
 Facility Plan for the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) – Mandated

The facility plan must be adopted as part of the Sewer Comprehensive Plan and the Comprehensive Plan.

 Land Use Map amendment – Sponsored Amendment

Change map designation from Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential for 3 lots on SW 
3rd Avenue (R132034884830, R132034884940, and R132034885060).

OHMC 18.15.070 establishes the criteria to review the Comprehensive Plan Amendment Docket.  
Attachment 1 provides the applicability of the criteria to the proposed preliminary docket items.

The items on the proposed preliminary docket meet the established criteria in OHMC 18.15.070.  
Except for the sponsored amendment, the items on this year’s preliminary docket are mandated by the 
State or by local plans.  The Planning Commission held a hearing and discussed the preliminary docket at 
their January 27, 2015 meeting.  There were no public comments received on the proposed docket.  At 
the conclusion of the public hearing the Planning Commission unanimously recommended the City Council 
approve the proposed docket as presented.approve the proposed docket as presented.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 36.70a.130(2)(a) specifically states that revisions to comprehensive plans should be considered no 
more frequently than once every year (some exceptions apply).  Therefore, Oak Harbor has adopted a 
review process that allows Comprehensive Plan amendments to be considered annually.  The process is 
codified under OHMC 18.15.

FISCAL IMPACT
Fund Required: N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
The Planning Commission held a hearing and discussed the preliminary docket at their January 27, 2015 
meeting.  There were no public comments received on the proposed docket.  At the conclusion of the 
public hearing the Planning Commission unanimously recommended the City Council approve the 
proposed docket as presented.

approve the proposed docket as presented.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 36.70a.130(2)(a) specifically states that revisions to comprehensive plans should be considered no 
more frequently than once every year (some exceptions apply).  Therefore, Oak Harbor has adopted a 
review process that allows Comprehensive Plan amendments to be considered annually.  The process is 
codified under OHMC 18.15.

FISCAL IMPACT
Fund Required: N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
The Planning Commission held a hearing and discussed the preliminary docket at their January 27, 2015 
meeting.  There were no public comments received on the proposed docket.  At the conclusion of the 
public hearing the Planning Commission unanimously recommended the City Council approve the 
proposed docket as presented.

174



ATTACHMENTS
1. Criteria Table
2. Resolution No. 15-03: 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendment Docket

ATTACHMENTS
1. Criteria Table
2. Resolution No. 15-03: 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendment Docket

175

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424794595_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424724958_at.pdf


Criteria provided in 
OHMC 18.15.070 (2) 

2016 Update CIP Facility Plan for 
the WWTP 

Land Use Changes 
(3 lots on SW 3rd 

Ave) 
(a)  The proposed 
amendments are 
consistent with Growth 
Management Act 
(GMA) and the 
Countywide Planning 
Policies (CPP). 

Yes Mandated
(RCW 
36.70A.130) 

Yes Mandated
(RCW RCW 
90.58.080) 

Yes
A WWTP was 
identified for 

replacement in the 
Sewer 

Comprehensive Plan 
by 2017.  The 

treatment plant is an 
essential public 

facility for the City 

Considering the land 
use prior to zoning 
changes is consistent 
with GMA and CPP 

(b)  The proposal does 
not appear to contradict 
other elements, goals 
and policies within the 
Comprehensive Plan. 

None identified None identified None identified None identified at this 
time 

(c)  The proposal will 
implement or further 
existing goals and 
policies in the 
Comprehensive Plan. 

Yes
Updates will 
keep the 
Comprehensive 
Plan in 
compliance with 
GMA 

Yes
Updates will 
keep the 
Comprehensive 
Plan in 
compliance with 
GMA 

Yes
The adoption of the 

Facility Plan 
supports existing 
goals and policies 

Consideration of this 
land use change will 
be done within the 
context of existing 
goals and policies 

(d) The proposal would 
correct an inconsistency 
within or make a 
clarification to a 
provision of the 
Comprehensive Plan. 

NA NA NA NA 

(e)  The proposed 
amendments have been 
clearly defined to 
determine a fairly 
accurate scope of work. 

Yes – the
scope of the 
updates was 
determined in 
2013. 

Yes Yes Yes

(f)  The proposed 
amendments respond to 
an expressed desire by 
the community. 

NA NA The Sewer 
Comprehensive Plan 

has identified the 
need for a new 

treatment facility by 
2017 

This is a sponsored 
amendment and is 
requested by a 
property owner with a 
desire to develop 
property at a slightly 
higher density than 
the current 
designation. 

(g)  The public interest 
would be best served by 
considering the proposal 
in the current year. 

Yes Yes Yes Yes

176



RESOLUTION NO. 15-03 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2015 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 
DOCKET 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor first adopted a Comprehensive Plan consistent with the 
requirements of the Washington State Growth Management Act (Chapter 36.70A RCW) in 
1995 by Ordinance 1027, and adopted amendments to the plan in 1997 by Ordinance 1100, 
in 1998 by Ordinance 1161, in 2000 by Ordinance 1215, in 2001 by Ordinance 1287, in 
2003 by Ordinance 1340, in 2004 by Ordinance 1396, in 2005 by Ordinance 1439, in 2007 
by Ordinance 1488, in 2008 by Ordinance 1542, in 2009 by Ordinance 1564, in 2010 by 
Ordinance 1594,  in 2012 by Ordinance 1647, and in 2014 by Ordinance 1708; and 

WHEREAS, THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, in the public interest, may adopt amendments 
or revisions to the Comprehensive Plan no more frequently than once per year in accordance 
with the State of Washington Growth Management Act RCW 36.70A.130(2); and  

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor in accordance with RCW 36.70A.130 has adopted 
Ordinance 1565 that established a schedule and process to review and amend the 
Comprehensive Plan; and  

WHEREAS, the proposals in the preliminary docket, as presented below, were reviewed 
against the criteria established in OHMC 18.15.070(2) and determined to be generally 
consistent; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on the preliminary 
docket on January 27, 2015 and recommended approval; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the docket on March 3, 2015; 
and  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor 
that the docket contained herein shall be established as the 2015 Comprehensive Plan 
Docket: 

2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendment Docket 
Proposed Amendment Type of  

Amendment 
Priority as per 

OHMC 18.15.050 
2016 Comprehensive Plan Update Mandated 

RCW 36.70A.130 
Priority A 

Capital Improvements Plan Mandated 
RCW 36.70A.130 

Priority A 

Facility Plan for the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant 

Mandated Priority A 

Future Land Use Map – 3 lots on SW 3rd Ave Sponsored Priority B 

177



 
PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this 3rd day of March, 2015. 
 
        

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
 

                                  
__________________________ 

       Scott Dudley 
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
City Attorney 
 

178



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: Economic Development 
Coordinator - Action to 
Approve Position Description

FROM: Larry E Cort, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Action to approve the Position Description for a full-time Economic Development Coordinator for City of
Oak Harbor. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Beginning in late 2012, the City initiated a half-time Economic Development Coordinator position under
the supervision of the City Administrator.  This half-time position was carved out of an existing Senior 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 11.a
Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: Economic Development 
Coordinator - Action to 
Approve Position Description

FROM: Larry E Cort, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Action to approve the Position Description for a full-time Economic Development Coordinator for City of 
Oak Harbor. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Beginning in late 2012, the City initiated a half-time Economic Development Coordinator position under 
the supervision of the City Administrator.  This half-time position was carved out of an existing Senior the supervision of the City Administrator.  This half-time position was carved out of an existing Senior 
Planner level position within Development Services. Much was accomplished during this two year period, 
including building fresh relationships between City staff and local and regional business communities, 
crafting stronger outreach to business recruitment specialists and local job retention, and strengthening 
broad-based economic revitalization in Oak Harbor. 

Starting this year, this economic development position is proposed to expand to full time. Attached is a 
draft Position Description (see attached) containing a broad spectrum of potential economic development
duties, many crafted from successful communities within Washington. While this list of potential duties is 
fairly broad, there are arguably a number of projects already identified in the City which could provide 
some immediate priorities for the new Economic Development Coordinator. Attached are several 
possible examples:  

a. While the Downtown Main Street program will be driven largely by an active merchant
community, there will be plenty be opportunities for the City to partner in activities than would benefit the 
Main Street program. Such programs have enjoyed tremendous benefit in communities over the nation.

b. Build stronger economic development opportunities using existing programs and activities already
being used by City officials and departments. The coordinator position could be instrumental in building 
an enhanced role connecting multiple entities in new ways.  

the supervision of the City Administrator.  This half-time position was carved out of an existing Senior 
Planner level position within Development Services. Much was accomplished during this two year period, 
including building fresh relationships between City staff and local and regional business communities, 
crafting stronger outreach to business recruitment specialists and local job retention, and strengthening 
broad-based economic revitalization in Oak Harbor. 

Starting this year, this economic development position is proposed to expand to full time. Attached is a 
draft Position Description (see attached) containing a broad spectrum of potential economic development 
duties, many crafted from successful communities within Washington. While this list of potential duties is 
fairly broad, there are arguably a number of projects already identified in the City which could provide 
some immediate priorities for the new Economic Development Coordinator. Attached are several 
possible examples:  

a. While the Downtown Main Street program will be driven largely by an active merchant
community, there will be plenty be opportunities for the City to partner in activities than would benefit the 
Main Street program. Such programs have enjoyed tremendous benefit in communities over the nation.

b. Build stronger economic development opportunities using existing programs and activities already
being used by City officials and departments. The coordinator position could be instrumental in building 
an enhanced role connecting multiple entities in new ways.  

179



c          About ten years ago, the City’s Comprehensive Plan incorporated several commercial 
enhancement opportunities in Oak Harbor, such as the northern Midway Boulevard overlay zone and the 
southern Goldie Street corridor.  Placing these creative options back on the front burner, led by the 
Economic Development Coordinator, could help bring new options to older commercial districts.

d. Perform research and analyses on potential grant applications for economic development
projects, including those of potential public and private benefit.

e. Develop a public outreach program that builds positive relationships with the Chamber of
Commerce, Oak Harbor School District, NAS Whidbey Island, Economic Development Committee, 
Island Transit and other entities that promote local, regional and national incentives for Oak Harbor.

f. Assume an important collaborative role in helping to develop the downtown waterfront design
plan encompassing the Wastewater Treatment Plant and other projects that might eventually be built in 
and around the new plant. 

g. Assume formative economic role in the “Feet on the Street” concept developed in late 2014 by a 
group of Oak Harbor citizens and approved for implementation in 2015 and 2016.  Focus will be on 
signage enhancement and creative approaches to downtown development options in the Bayshore Way
areas.  

Consistent with the previous effort to manage the Economic Development Coordinator, the new full-time 
staff member will be managed by the City Administrator’s office. The recent move from the Legal 
Department to downstairs at City Hall will leave an opportunity to establish the new position in the office 
formally occupied by the City Attorney. 

The Economic Development Coordinator position is proposed to be funded at the Senior Planner level.

c          About ten years ago, the City’s Comprehensive Plan incorporated several commercial 
enhancement opportunities in Oak Harbor, such as the northern Midway Boulevard overlay zone and the 
southern Goldie Street corridor.  Placing these creative options back on the front burner, led by the 
Economic Development Coordinator, could help bring new options to older commercial districts.

d. Perform research and analyses on potential grant applications for economic development
projects, including those of potential public and private benefit.

e. Develop a public outreach program that builds positive relationships with the Chamber of
Commerce, Oak Harbor School District, NAS Whidbey Island, Economic Development Committee, 
Island Transit and other entities that promote local, regional and national incentives for Oak Harbor.

f. Assume an important collaborative role in helping to develop the downtown waterfront design
plan encompassing the Wastewater Treatment Plant and other projects that might eventually be built in 
and around the new plant. 

g. Assume formative economic role in the “Feet on the Street” concept developed in late 2014 by a
group of Oak Harbor citizens and approved for implementation in 2015 and 2016.  Focus will be on 
signage enhancement and creative approaches to downtown development options in the Bayshore Way 
areas.  

Consistent with the previous effort to manage the Economic Development Coordinator, the new full-time 
staff member will be managed by the City Administrator’s office. The recent move from the Legal 
Department to downstairs at City Hall will leave an opportunity to establish the new position in the office 
formally occupied by the City Attorney. 

The Economic Development Coordinator position is proposed to be funded at the Senior Planner level.The Economic Development Coordinator position is proposed to be funded at the Senior Planner level.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
None.

FISCAL IMPACT
Position approved for funding during the 2015-16 budget process.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
Council Workshop discussion on February 25, 2015.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Economic Development Coordinator Draft Position Description

The Economic Development Coordinator position is proposed to be funded at the Senior Planner level.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
None.

FISCAL IMPACT
Position approved for funding during the 2015-16 budget process.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
Council Workshop discussion on February 25, 2015.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Economic Development Coordinator Draft Position Description

180

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424809234_at.pdf


DRAFT 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

JOB DESCRIPTION 

Job Title: Economic Development Coordinator 

Department: Administration  

Reports to: City Administrator 

Status: Exempt /Non-union 

Job Summary:  

Under the direction of the City Administrator, plan, organize and complete economic development projects that focus on retaining and 

recruiting new businesses to the City.  Perform lead duties and provide work direction on projects as assigned.  Perform complex 

projects independently, make presentations before the City Council, community organizations and others regarding assigned projects.  

Support the economic development function by performing limited scope projects independently, initiating business recruitment and 

retention efforts in person or on the telephone, perform research and support duties for other economic development staff and 

maintains records, prepare data and respond to customer inquiries regarding assigned projects.  The Economic Development 

Coordinator reports to the City Administrator. 

Essential Job Functions: 

1. Serve as City resource for commercial and development issues and City liaison to City businesses, commercial enterprises and

related groups; identify opportunities for outreach to and to establish and improve relationships with business focused community

groups; work and independently act as a team-player in all interactions with other city staff.

2. Assist the City Administrator and management team in planning, organizing, coordinating, and evaluating economic development

activities within the City; coordinate and encourage the development of strategies that maintain and enhance the short and long-term

financial health of the City.

3. Develop and implement a business recruitment and retention campaign and marketing strategy and business assistance programs for

existing and prospective businesses; serve as a “broker” in recruiting and assisting business interested in locating in the City to

identify suitable properties for their enterprises.

4. Coordinate and facilitate public/private partnerships for development projects; work with developers, property owners, and potential

new businesses to identify opportunities for new development and redevelopment; develop liaisons between the City and various

business-related organizations and agencies; coordinate communication, projects and activities with various City departments and

personnel, special interest groups and the general public; provide information and technical assistance to staff, citizens, community

and neighborhood groups in the development of improvement programs and projects.

5. Coordinate program activities; evaluate program progress and results; develop, prepare and coordinate special projects as assigned;

manage procurement process and work of consultants hired to assist the City in economic development efforts.

6. Communicate with, respond to and resolve complaints, conflicts, concerns and questions, and provide recommended solutions to

citizens, contractors, customers, developers, property owners, business owners and public and private agencies concerning City

services, policies and procedures, activities and programs.

7. Provide technical expertise and respond to complex questions; act as facilitator between the development community and City staff;

communicate with department directors, City officials and others regarding policy issues and matters of mutual concern.

8. Research and compile information concerning program needs and resources; analyze and prioritize potential economic development

projects/opportunities; provide financial impact analyses of potential projects and partnerships that involve or require City

participation.

9. Review proposed ordinances and codes that relate to economic development. Recommend changes that would encourage or

facilitate economic development in desired areas.

10. Provide financial analysis for projects that require City participation. Prepare specifications and develop Requests for Proposal

(RFP’s) for public/private projects. Analyze responses and make recommendations on proposals.

11. Research, strategize and submit grant applications for potential funding sources for economic development projects. Investigate

the use of LID’s, bonds or other financing instruments that might facilitate redevelopment of business districts. Monitor grant

performance and expenditure of funds.

12. Explore existing State and local laws to determine what development tools that currently exist that could help the City in its

development efforts.

181



13. Prepare and present oral and visual reports to public and private agencies, City Council, hearing bodies, community groups and other 

organizations to explain City policies and community impacts, to respond to questions and comments and to present technical 

information and policy options for consideration. 

14. Assist with the media and preparation of news releases; coordinate department contacts as necessary. 

15. Research, analyze and report on economic and market trends; develop and prepare program proposals, staff reports, proclamations, 

ordinances, position papers; analyses; publications; visual aids; displays; newsletters; activity and progress reports. 

16. Establish and maintain effective and cooperative working relationships and teamwork with the executive team, department heads, 

supervisors, employees, public officials, business representatives and the public using good judgment, tact and courtesy. 

17. Train and provide work direction to assigned project personnel. 

  

Associated Job Functions: 

1. Attend various workshops, continuing education meetings, seminars and conferences. 

2. Perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned. 

 

Performance Requirements (Knowledge, Skills and Abilities):  

 Knowledge of Principles and practices of economic development. 

 Ability to gain a working knowledge of City processes, procedures, codes and regulations, City organization, operations and 

objectives. 

 Knowledge of financial feasibility, pro forma analysis, current economic trends and economic forecasting. 

 Skills in project management, consensus building, and business recruitment and techniques. 

 Knowledge of marketing and promotion techniques and skills. 

 Knowledge of financing instruments and strategies for financing development projects. 

 Ability to read, interpret, apply and explain rules, regulations, codes, policies and procedures. 

 Assist with complex economic development issues and resource allocations issues 

 Analyze complex issues and impacts and provide clear and concise recommendations and alternative solutions. 

 Ability to plan, prioritize, schedule and organize work, develop schedules, timelines, work programs and cost estimates and meet 

schedules and timelines. 

 Ability to compile and prepare reports, RFP’s, pro forma financial analysis and other documents etc. 

 Ability to facilitate the development process. 

 Ability to research methods and report analysis.  

 Ability to communicate effectively both orally and in writing with public speaking techniques and customer service skills.  

Thorough knowledge of English, spelling, grammar, vocabulary and punctuation. 

 Ability to negotiate and seek creative solutions using good interpersonal skills. 

 Ability to analyze situations accurately and recommend an effective course of action or present alternative solutions. 

 Ability to implement economic development strategy for the city. 

 Ability to use personal computer with associated software and presentation/graphics software, dictation equipment, planimeter, 

audiovisual equipment and other office equipment. 

 Ability to work independently, problem solve, manage projects and be a flexible and proactive self starter. 

 

Working Environment and Physical Demands: 

Work is performed primarily in an office environment with some travel to other City buildings by foot or by car, and  occasional 

fieldwork and site visits that may be performed in all types of weather conditions.  Attendance at evening meetings several times a 

month is also necessary.  Work requires normal hearing and visual acuity, eye/hand coordination and manipulation skills to operate a 

personal computer, telephone and other equipment, as well as the ability to sit for extended periods of time and access all areas of the 

facility including stairs, sufficient mobility to drive a vehicle and to visit development sites, and walking on all types of terrain.   

 

Experience and Training Requirements: 

 Bachelor’s degree in Economics, Business Administration, Public Administration, Planning, Marketing or related field and  

 Three years professional experience in planning, economic development, community development, property management, 

construction or project management, public relations or similar field. 

 Must have demonstrated competency with personal computer and word processing, spreadsheet, data base and 

presentation/graphics software.   

182



Valid Washington State driver's license or otherwise establish the ability to perform the job in an equally efficient manner without 

driving.   

Must pass background and drivers record checks. 

A combination of education, training and experience that provides the required knowledge, skills and abilities to perform the essential 

job functions will be considered. 

Established:  HR 11/12 FLSA:  Exempt   

Revised:     Salary:  --   

The statements contained herein reflect general details as necessary to describe the principal functions of this job, the level of knowledge and skill 

typically required, and the scope of responsibility, but should not be considered an all-inclusive listing of work requirements.  Individuals may 

perform other duties as assigned including work in other functional areas to cover absences or relief, to equalize peak work periods, or otherwise to 

balance the workload. 

183



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: Approve Contract with 
Ameresco for Lighting Upgrade 
Project

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to:

1) Authorize the Mayor to sign the Energy Service Proposal (Professional Services Contract) with
Ameresco for lighting upgrades, and

2) Authorize the Mayor to sign the acceptance of the Department of Commerce Grant in the amount of 
$210,000.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 11.b
Date: March 3, 2015

Subject: Approve Contract with 
Ameresco for Lighting Upgrade 
Project

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Scott Dudley, Mayor
Larry Cort, City Administrator
Doug Merriman, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to:

1) Authorize the Mayor to sign the Energy Service Proposal (Professional Services Contract) with
Ameresco for lighting upgrades, and

2) Authorize the Mayor to sign the acceptance of the Department of Commerce Grant in the amount of
$210,000.$210,000.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
City staff has been working with Ameresco, Inc., an energy consultant, on the State contract under 
Department of Energy Services (DES) on a proposal to implement energy efficiency measures for the 
City. The proposal includes changing City owned street lights to LED technology and implementing 
lighting conservation measures at the following locations:

 City Hall
 Fire Station
 Marina
 Publics Works
 Parks
 Police Department
 Senior Center

The City will be required to upgrade the lighting at many of these facilities because the current lighting 
uses T-12 32 watt lights which are being phased out and will not be available in the future. Ameresco has 
completed an analysis of the expected energy savings from the lighting upgrades and estimated the simple 
payback period for each facility. Payback periods range from 3.21 years at the Police Department to 

$210,000.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
City staff has been working with Ameresco, Inc., an energy consultant, on the State contract under 
Department of Energy Services (DES) on a proposal to implement energy efficiency measures for the 
City. The proposal includes changing City owned street lights to LED technology and implementing 
lighting conservation measures at the following locations:

 City Hall
 Fire Station
 Marina
 Publics Works
 Parks
 Police Department
 Senior Center

The City will be required to upgrade the lighting at many of these facilities because the current lighting 
uses T-12 32 watt lights which are being phased out and will not be available in the future. Ameresco has 
completed an analysis of the expected energy savings from the lighting upgrades and estimated the simple 
payback period for each facility. Payback periods range from 3.21 years at the Police Department to 

184



15.77 years in Parks. A summary of the simple payback for each facility is included in the attached 
energy services proposal.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
The total estimated cost of this project, including design and implementation of the improvements and one 
year of post installation and verification of the energy savings by Ameresco and project management by
the Washington State Department of Energy Services, is $847,705.

Working with Ameresco, the City applied for and was awarded a grant from the Washington Department
of Commerce in the amount of $210,000. These grant funds must be expended by June 30, 2015.  In 
addition, the City is eligible to apply for energy savings incentive funds from Puget Sound Energy. Based 
on the proposed lighting upgrades, the estimated incentive from Puget Sound Energy is $124,061. 

Based on this information, the maximum amount of City funding for the project is $513,644.  The 
financing for the next project costs will be obtained through the City's participation in the State of 
Washington's Local Option Capital Asset Lending (LOCAL) program. 

The LOCAL program is an expanded version of the successful state agency lease/purchase program. The 
program was originally created by the Legislature in 1989 (RCW 39.94) to provide the lowest cost 
financing for state agency purchases by pooling funding needs into larger offerings of securities.  The 
Legislature passed legislation in 1998 to provide local governments access to the program. Local 
government agencies of all types can finance equipment or real estate needs through the State Treasurer's
office subject to existing debt limitations and financial considerations.  The major benefits of LOCAL are 

15.77 years in Parks. A summary of the simple payback for each facility is included in the attached 
energy services proposal.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
The total estimated cost of this project, including design and implementation of the improvements and one 
year of post installation and verification of the energy savings by Ameresco and project management by 
the Washington State Department of Energy Services, is $847,705.

Working with Ameresco, the City applied for and was awarded a grant from the Washington Department 
of Commerce in the amount of $210,000. These grant funds must be expended by June 30, 2015.  In 
addition, the City is eligible to apply for energy savings incentive funds from Puget Sound Energy. Based 
on the proposed lighting upgrades, the estimated incentive from Puget Sound Energy is $124,061. 

Based on this information, the maximum amount of City funding for the project is $513,644.  The 
financing for the next project costs will be obtained through the City's participation in the State of 
Washington's Local Option Capital Asset Lending (LOCAL) program. 

The LOCAL program is an expanded version of the successful state agency lease/purchase program. The 
program was originally created by the Legislature in 1989 (RCW 39.94) to provide the lowest cost 
financing for state agency purchases by pooling funding needs into larger offerings of securities.  The 
Legislature passed legislation in 1998 to provide local governments access to the program. Local 
government agencies of all types can finance equipment or real estate needs through the State Treasurer's 
office subject to existing debt limitations and financial considerations.  The major benefits of LOCAL are office subject to existing debt limitations and financial considerations.  The major benefits of LOCAL are 
(1) simplicity and (2) low cost financing. Participants will benefit from the current program rating of 
Moody's Aa2, low fees and expenses, and access to the public bond markets. 

The State issues LOCAL bonds in March and August of each year.  Accordingly, interim funding for the 
net project costs of the Ameresco project will be provided through an interfund loan, with each 
respective department paying for its prorate sharing of the debt service cost.  Once the City receives its 
prorated share of the August 2015 LOCAL bond issue from the State, the net proceeds will be used to 
retire, in full, the interfund loan.  

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
The Department of Energy Services (DES) funding authorization was approved by City Council in 
December 2013.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Department of Commerce Grant Working Papers Survey
2. Ameresco Tables B, C & D
3. Ameresco Energy Services Proposal

office subject to existing debt limitations and financial considerations.  The major benefits of LOCAL are 
(1) simplicity and (2) low cost financing. Participants will benefit from the current program rating of 
Moody's Aa2, low fees and expenses, and access to the public bond markets. 

The State issues LOCAL bonds in March and August of each year.  Accordingly, interim funding for the 
net project costs of the Ameresco project will be provided through an interfund loan, with each 
respective department paying for its prorate sharing of the debt service cost.  Once the City receives its 
prorated share of the August 2015 LOCAL bond issue from the State, the net proceeds will be used to 
retire, in full, the interfund loan.  

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
The Department of Energy Services (DES) funding authorization was approved by City Council in 
December 2013.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Department of Commerce Grant Working Papers Survey
2. Ameresco Tables B, C & D
3. Ameresco Energy Services Proposal

185

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=39.94
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424989023_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424884062_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=5e4568eb0b5b14a4bf1a91c00fb5d9b2&aName=1424882691_at.pdf


1 

2013 – 2015 Energy Efficiency and Solar Grants for 
Higher Education, Local Governments and State Agencies 

Program Guidelines 
September 2014 

REVISED PROGRAM GUIDELINES 

Commerce has revised the 2013 - 2015 Energy Efficiency and Solar Grant Program to place 
more emphasis on cost effective energy efficiency and solar projects. 

Here are the key program changes: 

 All projects must have a simple payback of 50 years or less.  If your project exceeds
this payback period, it will not be considered cost effective and will be eliminated from
the competition.  Commerce defines simple payback as the total project costs divided by
the energy savings.

 Commerce’s grant funds must be used predominately for deeper energy efficiency or
solar measures.  Our program is about saving energy and not about repairing buildings
or paying for basic operations and maintenance or weatherization measures.  We
understand that in some instances the building must be repaired before an energy
efficiency measure maybe installed.  Building repairs and operation and maintenance
and/or weatherization measures must represent a small fraction of the total project cost.
When you are applying for an energy efficiency and solar grant for the same building
only installing weatherization and/or operations and maintenance measures is not
acceptable.

 Projects that simply replace like for like equipment will no longer be considered.
Applicants must provide system and equipment efficiency improvements that exceed
current minimum standards.  Demonstrate these efficiency improvements by selecting
equipment from recognized efficiency programs.  For example, when replacing a heat
pump, specify equipment that exceeds the minimum federal standards by specifying an
Energy Star Heat pump.  When replacing T-12 lighting, use the CEE High-Performance
T-8 Specification rather than conventional T-8 ballast and lamps.

 All solar applications regardless if they are for a solar only grant or a solar grant and an
energy efficiency grant must involve building(s) that meet the program’s minimum
energy efficiency threshold, as defined by an EPA’s ENERGY STAR Portfolio Manager®
score of 80 or greater.  The ENERGY STAR score must be submitted with the
application.

186



2 

 Energy efficiency grants will be segregated into two categories:  facilities and street
lighting-only.  Each category will be scored separately with awards provided to the best
candidates in each category.  Facility projects are identified as projects that are focused
on improving energy efficiency in buildings primarily or may include a combination of
facility measures and street lighting in the same proposal.  Street lighting-only projects
are identified as projects that are served by utility street lighting tariff and/or light the
public right of way.  Outdoor lighting served by a facility utility meter is not street lighting.

 Grant applications for facilities must share their Energy Star Portfolio Manager Account
with a Commerce Efficiency Grants master account.  If the grant is awarded, the Energy
Star Portfolio Manager account must be maintained through the evaluation period.

Commerce will use be using the following new average energy rates in determining the 
project’s simple payback: 
• Electricity $0.079/kWh 
• Gas $0.85/therm 
• Fuel Oil $3.18/gal 
• Propane $1.80/gal 
All of these average Washington rates come from the most recent EIA commercial rates. 
Commerce is using these average rates to make cost-benefit analysis uniform across all 
proposals. 

 Applications for this round must be submitted online through ZoomGrants.  Commerce is
now using ZoomGrants to manage its online application process.  ZoomGrants
registration and the grant application itself will be accessible through a link on the
Commerce 2013-2015 Energy Efficiency and Solar grant website that will be available
soon:
http://www.commerce.wa.gov/Programs/services/CapitalFacilities/Pages/EnergyEfficienc
yGrants.aspx

Background and Purpose 

Engrossed Substitute Senate Bill 5035, Chapter 19 Section 1075 
(http://apps.leg.wa.gov/documents/billdocs/2013-14/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/Senate/5035-
S.SL.pdf) as passed by the Second Session, 2013 Legislature includes an appropriation of $25 
million to the Washington State Department of Commerce (Commerce) for energy efficiency 
and solar cost saving grants.  The appropriation requires at least $5,000,000 to be set aside for 
projects that involve the purchase and installation of Washington-manufactured solar energy 
systems, including solar modules and inverters.  The legislation also directs Commerce to 
award at least 10 percent of each competitive grant round to small cities or towns with a 
population of fewer than five thousand residents. 

Commerce’s 2013 - 2015 Energy Efficiency and Solar Grant program focuses first on energy 
efficiency.  Energy efficiency is the most cost effective energy resource available.  The program 
then focuses on solar energy.  Solar, a renewable energy resource helps create jobs and 
economic growth in the clean energy field and helps Washington meet its greenhouse gas 
reduction goals. 

187

http://www.commerce.wa.gov/Programs/services/CapitalFacilities/Pages/EnergyEfficiencyGrants.aspx
http://www.commerce.wa.gov/Programs/services/CapitalFacilities/Pages/EnergyEfficiencyGrants.aspx
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/documents/billdocs/2013-14/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/Senate/5035-S.SL.pdf
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/documents/billdocs/2013-14/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/Senate/5035-S.SL.pdf


 
 

3 

 

Energy efficiency and solar grants will be awarded through a competitive process and may be 
used solely for energy and operational cost savings improvements.  Related projects that are 
necessary to implement energy efficiency improvements may also be considered for funding.  
The immediate goal of the program is to stimulate Washington’s economy by creating jobs.  The 
long-term goal is to reduce energy costs at the state’s public education facilities, local agencies 
and state agencies. 
 
Grants will be awarded for projects using Energy Savings Performance Contracting (ESPC) or 
equivalent http://www.des.wa.gov/services/facilities/Energy/ESPC/Pages/default.aspx.  In order 
to be considered, applicants must demonstrate they have the expertise to manage their own 
projects and must follow the ESPC guidelines. 
 
 
Eligibility 
 
Public higher education institutions, local agencies and state agencies are eligible to apply. 
 
Commerce defines local agencies as: any city and any town, county, special district, municipal 
corporation, agency, port district or authority, or political subdivision of any type, or any other 
entity or authority of local government in corporate form or otherwise.  Commerce will be using 
the list of small cities or towns produced by the Office of Financial Management (OFM)  Please 
reference the official April 1, 2014 Population Determination, scheduled to be released June 30, 
2014 through the following website:  http://www.ofm.wa.gov/pop/april1/info.asp  
 
State agencies may not submit applications for leased facilities.  Local agencies and higher 
educational facilities may submit applications for leased facilities as long as there is a minimum 
10 year lease from the time of the final Commerce grant payment. 
 
Commerce’s program is not open to: 

 K-12 public schools 
 New construction projects 
 Combined heat and power (co-generation) projects 

The Office of the Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI) received a separate appropriation 
for K-12 schools.  Please click here for more information:  
http://www.k12.wa.us/SchFacilities/Programs/EnergyImprovement/default.aspx  
 
Applications and Grant Amounts 
 
Commerce’s 2013 - 2015 Energy Efficiency and Solar Grant program through ZoomGrants will 
include applications for both energy efficiency and solar grants. 
 
Applicants applying for Commerce’s program may receive: 

 An energy efficiency grant 
 An energy efficiency grant for street lighting-only (this is considered an energy 

efficiency grant) 
 A solar grant 
 Both an energy efficiency and a solar grant 

188

http://www.des.wa.gov/services/facilities/Energy/ESPC/Pages/default.aspx
http://www.ofm.wa.gov/pop/april1/info.asp
http://www.k12.wa.us/SchFacilities/Programs/EnergyImprovement/default.aspx


 
 

4 

 

Eligible applicants may apply for: 
 An energy efficiency grant for facilities or a combined facility and street lighting grant 
 A street lighting-only grant 
 A solar-only grant if the application is for a building that meets Commerce’s  minimum 

energy efficiency threshold, as defined by an EPA’s ENERGY STAR Portfolio Manager® 
score of 80 or greater.  

 An energy efficiency grant and a solar grant at the same time 
 
All solar grants, regardless if they are a solar only grant or a solar grant and an energy 
efficiency grant, must involve building(s) that meet the program’s minimum energy efficiency 
threshold, as defined by an EPA’s ENERGY STAR Portfolio Manager® score of 80 or 
greater (see solar grant requirements for more details) 

The maximum energy efficiency grant amount any entity can receive (combination of 
applications if more than one) is $500,000. 
 
The minimum solar grant amount (regardless if it is a solar photovoltaic (PV) or a non-PV 
system - solar thermal, solar driven engine, etc.) is based on the project providing a minimum of 
20,000 kilowatt hour (kWh) or equivalent Btu/year of generation or savings.  For small cities and 
towns (with populations of 5,000 or less) the minimum solar grant amount is based on the 
project providing a minimum of 10,000 kWh or equivalent Btu/year of generation or savings. 
 
All solar projects have a maximum grant amount of $1 million.  However, Commerce reserves 
the right to modify grant request amounts based on application demand levels.  Scoring for solar 
grants will consider the Washington manufactured components.  The solar energy savings or 
production score will be adjusted by the Washington manufactured content ratios included in 
WAC 458-20-273 (14). http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=458-20-273.  Projects with 
more Washington made components will receive a higher score. 
 
NOTE: An applicant can receive the maximum grant amount for one project or the maximum 
amount could be split between multiple projects.  Commerce reserves the right to modify grant 
request amounts based on application demand levels.  Additionally, final awards may take into 
account fair and equitable geographical distribution and the applicant’s access to other sources 
of funds necessary to complete the project. 
 
 
Funding Availability and Timing 
 
2015 Grants will be awarded in one round.  Applications are due by September 18, 2014 by 
5:00 p.m.  Applications must be submitted through ZoomGrants.  ZoomGrants may be accessed 
through a link on the Commerce 2013 - 2015 Energy Efficiency and Solar Grants website:  
http://www.commerce.wa.gov/Programs/services/CapitalFacilities/Pages/EnergyEfficiencyGrant
s.aspx.  The link will be available soon. 
 
If an applicant received an award in Round One of the 2013 - 2015 competition, they may 
submit another application in the 2015 Grant round only if they have not yet received the 
cumulative maximum grant award of $500,000 for energy efficiency or $1 million for solar. 
 

189

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=458-20-273
http://www.commerce.wa.gov/Programs/services/CapitalFacilities/Pages/EnergyEfficiencyGrants.aspx
http://www.commerce.wa.gov/Programs/services/CapitalFacilities/Pages/EnergyEfficiencyGrants.aspx


 
 

5 

 

We encourage applicants to aggregate energy measures and submit them as a single project 
whenever possible.  Qualified applicants may also submit more than one grant application per 
round – provided the applications are for different energy measures.  However, Commerce will 
not consider applications that seek funding for more than one project in the same building in the 
same round. 
 
Commerce will have $8,229,366 available for grants in this round.  $822,936 will be set aside for 
small cities and towns.  There will be at least $2,101,903 available for solar grants and up to 
$5,304,527 for energy efficiency grants. 
 
Project Start Date 
 
Projects that enter into a contract for construction on or after July 1, 2013, are eligible to apply 
for a grant. 
 
Grant Scoring Criteria 
 
Both energy efficiency and solar grants will be awarded through a competitive process.  
Commerce will score higher education, local government, small cities and towns, and state 
agency applications within their own category.  Facility projects are identified as projects that 
are focused on improving energy efficiency in buildings primarily or may include a combination 
of facility measures and street lighting in the same proposal.  For example, all state agencies 
will be scored collectively against each other.  State agencies will not be scored against any 
other eligible entity (i.e. local governments, higher education, small cities and towns).  
 
Energy efficiency grants will be segregated into two categories: facilities and street lighting-only. 
Each category will be scored separately with awards provided to the best candidates in each 
category. Street lighting-only projects are identified as projects that are served by utility street 
lighting tariff and/or light the public right of way. Outdoor lighting served by a facility utility meter 
is not street lighting. 
 
Energy efficiency and solar projects will be scored separately, even if the project includes both 
energy efficiency and solar. 
 
All energy efficiency and solar projects will be scored on (in order of priority and weighted per 
ESSB 5035, Sec. 1075): 

 Leverage ratio (the higher the ratio of non-state funds to state funds, the higher the 
score); 

 Energy savings (the higher the energy savings, the higher the score). 
 
Leverage 
 
Commerce has the following program GOALS: 

 The Commerce grant is to constitute 25 percent or less of the total project cost 
(leverage ratio of 3:1) 

 Applicants are encouraged to provide funding equivalent to at least seven years worth 
of energy savings or more 

190



 
 

6 

 

Commerce scores applications based on the amount of non-state funds an applicant contributes 
to a project (the higher the ratio of non-state funds to state funds, the higher the score). 
 
The following source of funds cannot be used as leverage for any applicant: 

 Any funds that originated as an appropriation from the Legislature are considered 
state funds.  (These funds cannot be used to supplant other funds obtained through 
the private sector – e.g. payoff loans). 

 
Higher Education may use the following funds as leverage: 

 Lease/Purchase program through the Office of the State Treasurer 
http://www.tre.wa.gov/government/leasePurchaseProgram.shtml 

 Utility incentives 
 Student fees 
 Private donations 
 Private lenders 
 Federal funds 
 Non-state appropriated funds 

 
Local Governments may use the following funds as leverage: 

 Local Option Capital Asset Lending (LOCAL) program through the Office of the 
State Treasurer http://www.tre.wa.gov/LOCAL/index.shtml 

 Private lenders 
 Utility incentives 
 Local and federal funds 
 Non-state appropriated funds 

 
State agencies may use the following funds as leverage: 

 Lease/Purchase program through the Office of the State Treasurer 
http://www.tre.wa.gov/government/leasePurchaseProgram.shtml 

 Utility incentives 
 Federal funds 
 Private donations 
 Non-state appropriated funds 

 
In addition, in-house labor (employee time, benefits and overhead) cannot be used as leverage.  
All leveraged funds must be capital. 
 
Energy Efficiency  Savings 
 

The program seeks to promote larger projects with deep energy efficiency savings and 
paybacks of seven years or more. Commerce will not fund projects with simple paybacks in 
excess of 50 years. 
 
Energy savings are based on current operating conditions as compared to the proposed 
operating conditions.  Commerce does not allow modified baselines.  Commerce will use be 
using the following new average energy rates in determining the project’s simple payback: 
 

191

http://www.tre.wa.gov/government/leasePurchaseProgram.shtml
http://www.tre.wa.gov/LOCAL/index.shtml
http://www.tre.wa.gov/government/leasePurchaseProgram.shtml


 
 

7 

 

 Electricity $0.079/kWh 
 Gas  $0.85/therm 
 Fuel Oil $3.18/gal 
 Propane $1.80/gal 

 
All of these average Washington rates come from the most recent EIA commercial rates.  
Commerce is using these average rates to make cost-benefit analysis uniform across all 
proposals. 
 
 
Energy Star Portfolio Manager for Facilities Grants 
 
All energy efficiency facilities grant applications are required to document the baseline energy 
use of the facility using Energy Star Portfolio Manager.  Funded projects (except for street 
lighting-only projects) will be required to continue to provide data using Energy Star Portfolio 
Manager through the evaluation period. 
 
1.  Create a Portfolio Manager Baseline 

 For projects that include a single facility with independent metering, create a Portfolio 
Manager account for the facility. 

o http://www.energystar.gov/buildings/facility-owners-and-managers/existing-
buildings/use-portfolio-manager/get-started-benchmarking  

 For projects that include multiple facilities or for projects served by a campus 
metering, create a Portfolio Manager account using the campus option. 

o http://www.energystar.gov/buildings/sites/default/uploads/tools/HowtoBenchm
arkaCampus_021114_508.pdf 

 
2.  Set Portfolio Manager Target Outcomes 

 Portfolio Manager allows the user to set targets for the facility or campus. Set the 
target to indicate the outcome expected from the grant project. 

 After you have created the account and input one year of energy data, open the 
“Planning” tab.  “Set Performance Baseline & Target”. Under the drop down “I want 
to” choose “add/edit baseline or target” 

 
3.  Share the Portfolio Manager Account with Commerce 

 Follow the Energy Star sharing instructions 
 Create a Contact with the user name: ComGrants  
 Share the account data using the  “Read Only” option 
 Instructions:http://www.energystar.gov/buildings/sites/default/uploads/tools/Portfolio

Manager_ShareData.pdf?21a9-73c7 
 

4.  Also include a printed copy of the EPA ENERGY STAR Portfolio Manager® progress and 
goals report.  
 
Document and Share Energy Star Results 
 

Follow the Energy Star instructions provided in the “Energy Star Portfolio Manager for 

Facilities Grants” noted above. 

192

http://www.energystar.gov/buildings/facility-owners-and-managers/existing-buildings/use-portfolio-manager/get-started-benchmarking
http://www.energystar.gov/buildings/facility-owners-and-managers/existing-buildings/use-portfolio-manager/get-started-benchmarking
http://www.energystar.gov/buildings/sites/default/uploads/tools/HowtoBenchmarkaCampus_021114_508.pdf
http://www.energystar.gov/buildings/sites/default/uploads/tools/HowtoBenchmarkaCampus_021114_508.pdf
http://www.energystar.gov/buildings/sites/default/uploads/tools/PortfolioManager_ShareData.pdf?21a9-73c7
http://www.energystar.gov/buildings/sites/default/uploads/tools/PortfolioManager_ShareData.pdf?21a9-73c7


 
 

8 

 

Specific Solar Grant Requirements 
 
Commerce’s solar grants are open to new solar systems and to the expansion of existing 
systems. 
 
Commerce’s solar grants cannot be used for: 

 Replacing existing solar systems 
 Community solar projects (as defined by WAC 458.20.273)  
 Leased equipment 
 Solar power purchase agreement projects 
 One or two solar panels, no demonstration projects 
 Solar electric car charging stations 

Commerce’s solar grants are available for made in Washington Solar PV electric generation 
systems and solar thermal water heating systems. 

 PV solar electric generation technologies (roof-mounted, ground-mounted and building-
integrated PV) 

 Solar thermal energy displacing systems (solar water heaters, solar space heating, and 
solar cooling systems) and non-PV solar electric (sterling engine) 

 

 Non-PV electric generating systems (dish sterling, solar troughs, dish and lens, and 
concentrating solar systems of up to 1MW).  

All applicants applying for Commerce’s solar grants regardless if it is a solar only grant or a 
solar and energy efficiency grant must submit documentation to demonstrate that the building(s) 
are energy efficient and do not need energy conservation work.  Please use EPA’s ENERGY 
STAR Portfolio Manager® first and then if your building type doesn’t fit into one of the 18 
categories, use the second documentation method listed below: 
 

 Use EPA ENERGY STAR Portfolio Manager® to create an ENERGY STAR score. The 
ENERGY STAR score must be 80 or higher http://www.energystar.gov/buildings/facility-
owners-and-managers/existing-buildings/use-portfolio-manager/identify-your-property-
type/ this method is limited to a set of 18 building descriptions. 

 
 If your building type does not receive an ENERGY STAR score using Portfolio 

Manager®, use ENERGY STAR Target Finder.  When entering data, enter the buildings 
actual energy use in the “estimated energy use” cells.  Submit the “statement of energy 
use intent” report with your grant submission.  To be eligible for a solar only grant, the 
building site EUI must be 30 percent lower than the median building site EUI included in 
this report. Target Finder supports 80 different building types 
https://portfoliomanager.energystar.gov/pm/targetFinder?execution=e10s1 

 
PV Systems 
 

 All PV systems must have a mandatory minimum of 20,000 kWh/year of generation.  
The exception to this is applications from small cities and towns.  Small cities  
and towns (with populations of 5,000 or less) must have a minimum 10,000 kWh/year of 
generation. 

193

http://www.energystar.gov/buildings/facility-owners-and-managers/existing-buildings/use-portfolio-manager/identify-your-property-type/
http://www.energystar.gov/buildings/facility-owners-and-managers/existing-buildings/use-portfolio-manager/identify-your-property-type/
http://www.energystar.gov/buildings/facility-owners-and-managers/existing-buildings/use-portfolio-manager/identify-your-property-type/
https://portfoliomanager.energystar.gov/pm/targetFinder?execution=e10s1


 
 

9 

 

 Be on the Department of Revenue list of Washington Manufacturers equipment 
approved for “Made in Washington” renewable energy systems cost recovery incentive 
payments (WAC 458.20.273, http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=458-20-273 
and http://dor.wa.gov/docs/pubs/industspecific/manufacturinglist.pdf 
 

Solar Thermal Systems 

 All solar water heaters must have a mandatory minimum of 20,000 kWh or equivalent 
Btu/year of savings. The exception to this is applications from small cities and towns.  
Small cities and towns (with populations of 5,000 or less) must have a minimum 10,000 
kWh or equivalent Btu/year of savings. 

 
 Meet the Department of Revenue’s definition of “Manufactured in Washington” (WAC 

458.20.273 (15), http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=458-20-273 
http://dor.wa.gov/docs/pubs/industspecific/manufacturinglist.pdf and meet the definition 
of when assembly constitutes manufacturing (WAC  458.20.136 (7) 
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=458-20-136 

 
PV, Non-PV Electrical Generating Systems and Solar Thermal Systems 
Applicants applying for both PV and solar hot water systems must meet all the requirements 
listed above. 
 
Performance Requirements 
 
All grant awards are contingent on applicants reaching binding agreements with their 
contractors to achieve or exceed projected energy savings, and to meet or beat the proposed 
budget and project start date in the application.  If the applicant and its contractors cannot 
execute binding agreements that meet or beat these key metrics for scoring applications, then 
the initial grant allocation will be rescinded and the applicant will be encouraged to resubmit the 
application in a future round.  Commerce will not reimburse project costs under this grant 
program unless the project meets or exceeds the energy and cost performance stated in the 
application. 
 
 
Energy Efficiency Application Submission Requirements 
 
All energy efficiency applicants must submit: 

 An on-line application through ZoomGrants 
 An investment grade audit (IGA) or a final Energy Service Proposal.  ASHRAE Level 111 

IGA is the standard 
 A letter from the applicant’s utility(s) stating the approximate rebate/incentive level 
 Energy Star Documentation and Sharing or Street lighting audit forms. The building(s) 

current EPA ENERGY STAR Portfolio Manager® score and/or energy use intensity 
(EUI) (except for street lighting-only projects) - please provide printout from the website 

 A measurement and verification (M&V) plan 
 For agencies working with the Department of Enterprise Service (DES), please submit a 

copy of your Interagency Agreement with DES 

194

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=458-20-273
http://dor.wa.gov/docs/pubs/industspecific/manufacturinglist.pdf
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=458-20-273
http://dor.wa.gov/docs/pubs/industspecific/manufacturinglist.pdf
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=458-20-136


 
 

10 

 

 If your agency is not using a DES project consultant, then a copy of the Request for 
Proposal (RFP) or Request for Qualifications (RFQ) that was used to select your ESCO 
or energy consultant is required 

 Governor’s Executive Order 05-05 review is required if your project has the potential to 
affect a building (or buildings) that are over 50-years old and/or proposes ground altering 
activities.  Please provide the Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation 
(DAHP), and local area tribes, the opportunity to review and comment prior to submitting 
your application 

 A letter from the Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation stating that the 
project complies with Executive Order 05-05 requirements, or proof that consultation on 
your application is on-going 
http://www.dahp.wa.gov/governors-executive-order-05-05 
 

Documentation Supporting Going beyond Code for Energy Efficiency Projects 
 
In this round of competition, applicants must provide system and equipment efficiency 
improvements that exceed current minimum standards.  Demonstrate these efficiency 
improvements by selecting equipment from recognized efficiency programs.  For example, when 
replacing a heat pump, specify equipment that exceeds the minimum federal standards by 
specifying an Energy Star Heat pump.  When replacing T12 lighting, use the CEE High-
Performance T8 Specification rather than conventional T-8 ballast and lamps.  In your 
application highlight program specifications including: 

 Utility Programs  
 Energy Star equipment or lighting standards 
 Consortium for Energy Efficiency (CEE) equipment or lighting standards 

 
Documentation Supporting Street Lighting-Only Projects 
 
All street lighting-only project submission should include an audit supporting the project.  This 
includes the baseline inventory of lamps and the details of the project upgrade.  Utility rebate 
forms for custom lighting projects will typically provide the appropriate level of documentation. 
Documentation should include: 

 Baseline lighting condition (fixture type, wattage and quantity) 
 Installed efficient lighting condition (fixture type, wattage and quantity) 
 Hours of operation and any reduction in hours in operation from controls  

   
Applications for street lighting-only projects shall also include a copy of the utility tariffs 
applicable to the project baseline and the completed project. 
 
 
Solar Application Submission Requirements 
 
All solar applicants must submit: 

 An on-line application through ZoomGrants 
 An investment grade audit (IGA) or a final Energy Service Proposal. ASHRAE Level 111 

IGA is the standard 
 Proof of compliance with Made in Washington WACs or Manufactured in WA WAC 

195

http://www.dahp.wa.gov/governors-executive-order-05-05


 
 

11 

 

 A M&V plan 
 A site plan 
 A shade analysis (from Solar PathFinder or Solmetric SunEye) 
 Expected annual generation (kWh) 
 A list of equipment and where they are made (modules, inverter(s), and racking for PV) 
 For agencies working with the Department of Enterprise Service (DES), please submit a 

copy of your Interagency Agreement with DES 
 If your agency is not using a DES project consultant, then a copy of the Request for 

Proposal (RFP) or Request for Qualifications (RFQ) that was used to select your ESCO 
or energy consultant is required 

 Governor’s Executive Order 05-05 review is required if your project has the potential to 
affect a building (or buildings) that are over 50-years old and/or proposes ground altering 
activities.  Please provide the Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation, and 
local area tribes, the opportunity to review and comment prior to submitting your 
application 

 A letter from the Department of Archaeology and Historic Preservation (DAHP) stating 
that the project complies with Executive Order 05-05 requirements, or proof that 
consultation on your application is on-going 
http://www.dahp.wa.gov/governors-executive-order-05-05 
 

If you are applying for a solar grant you must also submit documentation from EPA’s ENERGY 
STAR Portfolio Manager® that the building(s) has an ENERGY STAR Portfolio Manager® score 
of 80 or greater or if your building type does not receive an ENERGY STAR score using 
Portfolio Manager®, use ENERGY STAR Target Finder and submit the “statement of energy 
use intent” report with your grant submission. Follow the Energy Star Documentation and 
Sharing instructions. 
 
 

Answers to Commonly Asked Program Questions 
 
If there are other state funds in the project, does the applicant identify them even though 
they don’t count as leverage funds? 

Answer:  Yes, Commerce wants all project funds identified. 
 
What if an applicant doesn’t want to use the Department of Enterprise Services (DES) 
program and use a self-performing alternative non-Energy Service Company (non-
ESCO)? 

Answer:  An applicant does not have to use the DES program.  However, the applicant 
must follow DES guidelines for Energy Savings Performance Contracting. 
RCW 39.35C details Energy Savings Performance Contracting:  
http://www.des.wa.gov/services/facilities/Energy/ESPC/Pages/default.aspx 
 
Applicants may also work with solar installer companies, as long as the solar installer 
companies follow both the DES guidelines listed above and all of Commerce’s program 
guidelines. 

 
 

196

http://www.dahp.wa.gov/governors-executive-order-05-05
http://www.des.wa.gov/services/facilities/Energy/ESPC/Pages/default.aspx


 
 

12 

 

Does the applicant have to follow public works statutes? 
Answer:  Yes, all projects must comply with public works statutes (RCW 39.80 and 
39.04 cover ordinary public works contracting). 

 
Is competitive bidding required for hiring an Energy Service Company (ESCO) or a non-
ESCO?  

Answer:  If you are hiring an ESCO from the DES list, then you do not have to go 
through a competitive process (DES has already done this work in compiling their ESCO 
list).  If you are hiring a non-ESCO or hiring your own ESCO and following the ordinary 
public works contracting process, then yes, you do have to select through a competitive 
process. 

 

Can the grant be used to pay for in-house labor and if it cannot, can the in-house labor 
be used as leverage? 

Answer:  Commerce’s funds cannot be used to pay for in-house labor.  All leverage 
funds must be capital and not employee time, benefits and overhead. 

 
Can both a loan’s principal and interest be included as non-state funds for match? 

Answer:  No, only the principal can be used. 
 
If a project is beginning construction before the September 18, 2014 application deadline, 
can the applicant still apply for a grant to cover project costs?  The construction contract 
was signed after July 1, 2013. 

Answer:  Yes, the applicant can apply for a Round Two grant.  The grant funds can be 
used to pay for costs incurred after July 1, 2013, as long as those costs are included in 
the awarded project’s final scope of work.  Capital costs incurred between January 1, 
2013 and June 30, 2013 for the project will not be reimbursed, but can count as 
leverage.  Capital costs must have been for either energy efficiency projects (i.e. lighting, 
controls) or projects that had to be done before an energy efficiency measure could be 
installed (i.e. a new roof before installing insulation).  Costs associated with tenant 
improvements such as new walls, carpeting, floors, electric upgrades for IT equipment 
cannot be used for leverage. 

 

Can Grantees include their administrative costs on the project?  
 Answer:  No.  Administrative costs for Grantees are not covered by these grants. 
 
What Contractor costs are eligible? 
 Answer:  2013 - 2015 Energy Efficiency and Solar Grant funds may be used for: 

 Design, architectural, engineering, and energy consulting/auditing work 
 Construction labor and materials 
 Hazardous material removal and disposal, if related to installing the energy 

measures 
 Capitalized equipment 
 Construction management (from external sources only) 

 
Are projects required to do Measurement and Verification of Energy Savings (M&V)? 

Answer:  Yes, all projects are required to do M&V once the project has been completed 
and the Notice of the Commencement of Energy Savings has been issued.  The length 

197



 
 

13 

 

of the M&V depends if the project uses Energy Savings Performance Contracting and is 
done by an ESCO or not. 
 
If a project is done by an ESCO, the recommended minimum length of M&V is three 
years.  Projects that do not follow Energy Savings Performance Contracting and do not 
use an ESCO, the M&V period is 10 years, or until the energy and operational cost 
savings pay for the project, whichever is shorter. 
 
More detailed M&V requirements are in the Commerce contract. 

 
Are projects required to annually submit EPA ENERGY STAR Portfolio Manager scores? 

Answer:  Yes, projects are required to annually submit EPA ENERGY STAR Portfolio 
Manager scores (except street lighting-only projects) for at least the same length of time 
as their M&V period. 

 
 
Street Light Requirements 
 
Are street lights that are not owned by the local government (but maintained by the local 
government) eligible for Commerce’s grant? 

Answer:  Yes, Commerce allows street lights that are maintained by the local 
government and owned by the utility to be eligible for our grant.  Commerce wants all 
local governments to benefit as much as possible from the energy savings resulting from 
more efficient street lighting.  In some cities, the utility will give the local government 
either a new lower rate (tariff) for the street lights they maintain or a long-term rebate. 

 
Is there any additional paperwork Commerce wants local governments to provide who 
are installing energy efficient lighting on privately owned street lights? 

Answer:  Yes, Commerce must receive from the utility a letter or proof of an agreement 
stating what the new rate (tariff) or rebate is and how long this will be in place or a 
guarantee that the rate won’t change.  This letter, agreement or guarantee must be 
submitted with the application. 

 
If the applicant’s utility cannot provide any of these guarantees, can an applicant still 
apply for a Commerce grant to change non-owned, but maintained street lights? 
Answer:  No. But the applicant can still apply for lights they own. 
 
Is the rebate you are referring to above the same as the rebate the utility gives for 
installing energy efficiency street lights? 

Answer:  No.  The rebate the utility gives for installing energy efficient street lights is 
generally a one-time financial incentive.  The rebate Commerce is talking about is an on-
going rebate that lowers the cost the local government pays to the utility for the street 
lights. 

 
Can a Public Utility District (PUD) apply for a Commerce grant to change street lights 
they own and maintain? 

Answer:  Yes, PUDs are a form of local government. 
 

198



 
 

14 

 

Can a local government in a PUD service territory apply for a Commerce grant to change 
street lights on lights they do not own, but maintain? 

Answer:  Yes, as long as the PUD has not already applied for a Commerce grant to 
change street lights on the lights they own.  If the PUD has applied, then the local 
government cannot apply. Please check with your local PUD before submitting your 
application. 

 
Are mutual or coops or rural electric associations (REA) (i.e. Ohop Mutual Light 
Company or Peninsula Light Company or Benton REA) eligible for the Commerce grant? 

Answer:  No, the 2013 - 2015 Energy Efficiency and Solar Grant Program is only for 
public entities.  The organizations listed above are private corporations or non-profit 
organizations under Washington state laws. 

 
Can Commerce’s energy efficiency grant be used to pay for street light materials only? 

Answer:  Yes, applicants may submit an application for materials only.  However, the 
application must still meet all of the program guidelines (including submitting an Energy 
Services Proposal). 

 
Can Commerce’s grant be used to pay for in-house labor to install the street lights? 

Answer:  No.  Commerce’s funds cannot be used to pay for in-house labor. 
 
Can in-house labor be used as leverage? 

Answer:  No, all leverage funds must be capital and not employee time, benefits or 
overhead. 

 
Can the local utility do the Investment Grade Audit/Energy Savings Proposal? 

Answer:  Yes, the local utility can do the Investment Grade Audit/Energy Savings 
Proposal.  Because the project only involves street lights, this document will not be as 
long or as complex as one that involves several energy conservation measures.  This 
document must still contain all the basic information outlined in DES Energy Savings 
Performance Contracting Guidelines. 

 
 
Specific Contract Requirements 
 
Are binding agreements with contractors required? 

Answer:  Yes.  All grant awards are contingent upon Grantees reaching binding 
agreements with their contractors to achieve or exceed projected energy savings and to 
meet or beat the proposed budget stated in the application. 

 
Are prevailing wages required? 
 Answer:  Yes.  Grantees are required to pay at least state prevailing wages (RCW 39.12).  
 If your project is receiving any federal funds then you are required to pay whichever 

wage rate is higher (this may be either the Davis–Bacon Act or state requirements).  If 
you have questions regarding prevailing wages please contact Washington State 
Department of Labor & Industries (http://www.lni.wa.gov/) 

 

199

http://www.lni.wa.gov/


 
 

15 

 

Does Commerce require a percentage of the project work be given to small businesses 
or Minority/Women Business Enterprises (M/WBE)?  
Answer:  No.  However, if your local jurisdiction has such laws they must be followed. 
 

Are apprenticeships required? 
Answer:  Yes.  Apprenticeships are required on all construction costs over $1 million.  
 

Are there requirements concerning lead paint? 
Answer:  Yes.  If the project involves retrofitting, remodeling, weatherization involving 
removal, remodeling, etc. of a painted surface in a building (built in or prior to 1978) that 
serves children, the project will need a trained person to direct the activity such as the 
disposal of the material with the paint, putting up barriers so that the paint dust doesn’t 
travel, etc.  The Grantee needs to ensure that they hire someone or have someone on 
staff that is trained to deal with lead paint if they are going to be working in an area 
where there is lead paint. 
 

Must projects follow Executive Order 05-05 (Archaeology and Cultural Resources Review)? 
Answer:  If the project disturbs ground and/or affects structures that are more than 50 
years old a review is required by DAHP (http://www.dahp.wa.gov/governors-executive-
order-05-05).  If your project meets either of these two criteria, contact DAHP as soon as 
possible to start the review process before applying.  If your project is receiving federal 
funds and you are going through a Section 106 Review, please provide Commerce with 
this information and Executive Order 05-05 may not be required. 

 

What happens if a project has already begun and falls into the Executive Order 05-05 
criteria? 

Answer:  Your project will still be required to follow Executive Order 05-05 requirements 
as part of the application process. 

 

Are contract amendments required if the scope of work changes? 
Answer:  Yes.  If the project’s scope of work changes (due to unforeseen 
circumstances) an amendment to the Grantees’ contract with Commerce is needed.  
Any change in the scope of work must not deviate substantially from the Grantee’s 
submitted application, and is subject to prior approval by Commerce and possibly 
re-scoring of the application, which could change the grant amount. 

 
 
Costs, Invoicing and Payment 
 
How do we get paid? 
 Answer:  Funds are available once a contract is executed. Funds are electronically 

transferred into a Statewide Vendor Account number you provide to us.  If you need to 
set up an account number please visit the Department of Enterprise Services at 
http://des.wa.gov/services/IT/SystemSupport/Accounting/Pages/swps.aspx to learn how 
to create an account.  This process may take a couple of weeks, so please make sure 
you have this information available for us. 

 
 

200

http://www.dahp.wa.gov/governors-executive-order-05-05
http://www.dahp.wa.gov/governors-executive-order-05-05
http://des.wa.gov/services/IT/SystemSupport/Accounting/Pages/swps.aspx


 
 

16 

 

How often can we be paid? 
Answer:  Commerce will work with each Grantee to determine the payment plan that 
best suits them.  No one can be paid more than one time per month. If the Grantee 
prefers, they may be paid quarterly or at the end of the project. 
 

What documents must be submitted in order to initiate payment? 
 Answer:  Requests for payment must be submitted on a signed, original A-19 Invoice 

Voucher form supplied by Commerce.  The Grantee shall evidence the costs claimed on 
the Invoice Voucher by including: 

 A copy of each invoice claimed; and 
 A copy of the cancelled check or electronic funds transfer confirming payment of 

each expenditure for the amount of each invoice claimed. 
 
Can the A-19 form be submitted electronically? 
 Answer:  Yes 
 
Can multiple projects be submitted on one A-19? 
 Answer:  No.  Each A-19 is customized for the project and must be billed separately.  

These forms will be created and sent to you electronically by Commerce. 
 

What is Commerce’s agency number? 
 Answer:  1030 
 

If the project has already begun, can costs incurred to date be reimbursed even if your 
contract with Commerce has not been signed?  

Answer:  Yes.  Project costs incurred after July 1, 2013 will be reimbursed.  Any capital 
costs for the project incurred between January 1, 2013 and June 30, 2013 will not be 
reimbursed, but can count as leverage.  Capital costs must have been for either energy 
efficiency projects (i.e. lighting, controls) or projects that had to be done before an 
energy efficiency measure could be installed (i.e. a new roof before installing insulation).  
Costs associated with tenant improvements such as new walls, carpeting, floors, electric 
upgrades for IT equipment cannot be used for leverage. 

 
 

Reporting 
 

Are project status reports required? 
Answer:  Yes.  All Grantees are required to submit a Project Status Report each time 
you submit a reimbursement request.  Your contract manager will send you the form. 
 
However, if you are using the services of a non-ESCO contractor, you must submit an 
Inspection Status Report with the final reimbursement request.  This form must be 
signed by an individual authorized by the Grantee and signed and stamped by the 
project’s licensed engineer or architect. 

 

Are project photos required? 
Answer:  Yes, at 0 and 100 percent of project completion.  Also, photos showing people 
and/or students and buildings or people actively working on projects are great for telling 
success stories. 

201



 
 

17 

 

Jobs Reporting 
 
Why are the numbers of jobs funded being tracked? 

Answer:  The Legislature’s intent was to create jobs quickly due to the high 
unemployment rate in the construction industry.  Commerce will report the number of 
jobs funded to the Governor and the Legislature. 

 
How often are the number of jobs funded reported? 

Answer:  Quarterly, using the 2013 - 2015 Energy Efficiency and Solar Grants Quarterly 
Report form to be provided Commerce, until the entire project is complete, not just until 
Commerce grant funds have been completely reimbursed. 

 
Are contractors paid to complete the 2013 - 2015 Energy Efficiency and Solar Grants 
Quarterly Report form? 

Answer:  No. The grant does not include any additional funds to fill out this form. 
 
Time Frame 
 
How long does it take to execute a contract? 

Answer:  Contracts take three to four weeks to execute once all needed information is 
provided to Commerce. 
 

What is the contract’s time frame? 
Answer:  Technically these funds expire on June 30, 2015.  Washington operates under 
a biennial (two year) budget and each appropriation in the 2013 - 2015 Capital Budget, 
must, by law, lapse at the close of the biennium (June 30, 2015).  Since many projects 
take more than two years to complete, Commerce will request a reappropriation of any 
unspent funds as of that date.  However, we cannot guarantee that the Legislature will 
agree to extend funding, nor can we legally obligate funds from one biennium to the 
next.  Grantees are advised to discuss pending reappropriations with their legislators 
prior to the beginning of the legislative session in which the reappropriation is expected 
to occur. 

 
Rescinding Awards 
 
Can the grant you received be rescinded? 

Answer:  Yes, under any of the following conditions: 
 If the leverage ratio of non-state funding to state funding is less than the ratio 

stated in the application; or 
 If the final Energy Services Proposal (or equivalent, if not working with an ESCO) 

does not meet or exceed the minimum energy savings identified in the 
application; or 

 If the project does not meet or beat the proposed budget set forth in the 
application. 

 
 

 

202



 
 

18 

 

2013 – 2015 Energy Efficiency and Solar Grants for 
Higher Education, Local Governments and State Agencies 

 

 

 

Program Contacts: 
 

Pat Gibbon      Tom Stilz 
patricia.gibbon@commerce.wa.gov   tom.stilz@commerce.wa.gov  
360.725.3023      360.725.4045 
 
http://www.commerce.wa.gov/Programs/services/CapitalFacilities/Pages/EnergyEfficiencyGrant
s.aspx  

203

mailto:patricia.gibbon@commerce.wa.gov
mailto:tom.stilz@commerce.wa.gov
http://www.commerce.wa.gov/Programs/services/CapitalFacilities/Pages/EnergyEfficiencyGrants.aspx
http://www.commerce.wa.gov/Programs/services/CapitalFacilities/Pages/EnergyEfficiencyGrants.aspx


204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223


	Agenda for March 3, 2015 Regular Council Meeting
	Proclamation of St. Patrick's Day - March 17, 2015
	Minutes for Special Meeting on February 20, 2015
	Minutes for the Workshop Meeting  on February 25, 2015

	C/A 6.b Approval of Accounts Payable and Payroll Check Numbers
	Voucher Listings

	C/A 6.c Update to the Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan - Consultant RFPs
	2016 City of Oak Harbor Transportation Element RFP

	C/A 6.d Wastewater Treatment Plan - Construction Management RFPs
	Request for Proposals

	C/A 6.e Aurthorization to Bid - One (1) Front Load Refuse Truck
	Criteria Master Sheet #61

	C/A 6.f For Hire (Taxi) License Application for All Island Express Taxi, LLC
	Taxi License Application
	Background Check Application and Correspondence
	Washington State Department of Licensing For Hire Certificate
	Certificate of Liability Insurance
	For Hire Addendum
	Business License Application

	C/A 6.g Whidbey Pedestrian Crossing - Consultant Request for Proposal
	2015 City of Oak Harbor Whidbey Avenue Pedestrian Crossing

	C/A 6.h Waterfront Trail Repair - Consultant Request for Proposal
	2015 City of Oak Harbor Waterfront Trail Repair

	C/A 6.i Authorization to sign CWSRF Funding Agreements with Department of Ecology
	Department of Ecology Revolving Fund Agreement for WQC-2015-OakHar-00021
	Department of Ecology Revolving Fund Agreement for WQC-2015-OakHar-00110

	8.a Resolution 15-01: Fairway Point Final Plat, Division 3
	Fairway Point PRD Plans
	Final Plat of Fairway Point PRD Phase 3, Division 2
	Resolution 15-01

	9.a 2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendment Docket
	Criteria Table
	Resolution 15-03

	11.a Economic Development Coordinator - Action to Approve Position Description
	Job Description 

	11.b Approve Contract with Ameresco for Lighting Upgrade Project
	Department of Commerce Grant Working Papers Survey
	Ameresco Tables B, C & D
	Ameresco Energey Services Proposal




